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On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Goldin Properties
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the annual report
of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2010.

Results

The Group recorded a net profit of HK$930 million (2009: HK$730 million) for
the year ended 31 March 2010, representing an increase of 27.4%. The
increase was mainly due to uprising in fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$1,700 million. Basic earnings per share of the Group
increased by 27.3% to 76.03 HK cents. The Group had no turnover derived
from its continuing operations for the year (2009: Nil) as the property
development project has yet to launch for sale.

Business Review

PRC Property Development Business

The Group is now engaging in a mega property project in the developing
region of Tianjin province, one of the four autonomous municipalities along
with Beijing, Shanghai and Chongging, and is an integral part of the Bohai
Bay Economic Zone, which is one of the three biggest economic zones in
China. In light of the positive view taken by the Group on the PRC property
market, the Group transformed its principal activity from development and
sale of digital consumer products into property development and property
investment business through strategic investments in China’s high potential
property market and developed its first flagship project, Tianjin Goldin
Metropolitan (“Goldin Metropolitan” or the “Project”).
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Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Project

Goldin Metropolitan is an integrated high-ended mega project, comprising
international-standard avant-garde offices, cozy residential zone with
delightful surroundings, luxurious shopping malls, leisure and recreational
facilities, as well as the Tianjin's first ever polo field, which is another
upcoming project highlight. We aim to build a well-served community and set
new benchmarks for quality living in Tianjin.

High accessibility to major locations and convenient transportation network is
one of the Project’s highlights. Our project is strategically located in the
southwest of Tianjin, where it is highly accessible to the city centre of Tianjin.
The traveling distance within the city is expected to be shortened soon right
after the completion of No. 3 metro line. It will take around 25 minutes
driving distance from the project site to downtown and the Tianjin Binhai
International Airport. Furthermore, the traveling distance between Beijing and
Tianjin is expected to be shortened as well followed by the opening of Beijing-
Tianjin-Tanggu Expressway and Beijing-Tianjin Inter-City Rail. Following the
opening of the Beijing-Shanghai Expressway, the connection between Tianjin
and other major economic hubs of China and overseas will be getting closer.

Goldin Metropolitan has an aggregate planned gross floor area of
approximately 1.89 million square metres, which will be used for the
development of central business district, residential zone and polo club.
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Location and Transportation Network
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Central Business District

With the ultra-modern central business district (“CBD") design concept,
the CBD of Goldin Metropolitan is comprised of four functional districts:
(i) Hotel and Convention District, (i) Commercial District, (iii) Serviced
Apartment District and (iv) Entertainment District.

Goldin Finance 117 is the symbolic icon of Goldin Metropolitan, as well
as one of the significant landmarks in the heart of Tianjin with a
recommended height of approximately 600 metres and 117 floors.

With a diamond-shaped roof that blinks air, Goldin Finance 117 is
dedicated, modern and stylish with state-of-the-art functional facilities,
offering international Grade-A standard offices, while the highest 6-star
hotel will be located at approximate top 20 floors with unprecedented
Tianjin cityscape views.

The CBD also comprises the banking and finance building, the twin
towers, the international convention centre, the headquarters buildings,
a hip hotel, a service apartment, the broadway theatre and high-end
shopping facility, which is an ideal business base for international
enterprises.
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Residential Zone

Empowered by the unique “Elite Community Counts” philosophy, the
Group aims at building an international community for multinational
corporations and accommodating to the needs of oversea senior
executives, stationed in Tianjin or other nearby areas such as Beijing,
who desire to have more quality life and living. It is also built to suit
high net worth businessmen who pursue quality residence and living
style.

Goldin Metropolitan high-ended residential components comprise a
wide range of upscale apartments, low-density residential mansions and
opulently exclusive townhouses with luxury, customer-oriented and
unique design. Our residential zone has a total site area of
approximately 494,600 square metres. Phase one of the residential
zone, mainly comprised of low-density mansions, is expected to launch
in the third quarter of 2010.

Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club

Polo has long been the traditional sport among royalties and nobles. In
pioneering the international metropolitan lifestyle, the Group introduces
this centenary polo heritage and builds one of the largest polo clubs in
China, Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Polo Club (“Polo Club”) with a total
site area of approximately 898,800 square metres.

Polo Club is situated in the west of Goldin Metropolitan and decorated
in Modern European Architecture style with a wealthy polo clubhouse,
an outdoor dinning area, two international-standard polo fields with
training facilities, auxiliary polo sports facilities and a theme park. It is
expected to open in the third quarter of 2010.

Polo Club will play a key role in hosting international polo tournaments
and performances. We are confident that the international status of our
project will be enhanced through the hosting of these international
mega-events.
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Acquisition of lands

In February 2010, the Group acquired two parcels of land located at Xinjishu
Chenye Yuan Outer Ring District, Tianjin Municipal through public auction at
a consideration of approximately RMB145.7 million (equivalent to HK$165.5
million). Of these two sites, approximately 39,400 square metres land plots
are planned to develop the Polo Club, with an aggregate gross floor area of
approximately 58,000 square metres.

Professional Management Team

The Group is committed to dedicating resources to attract talent and build up
a strong and professional management team. Our team has an elite mix of
experienced property industry talent in different specialist fields, including
project planning, construction, engineering, hotel, property management,
marketing and sales as well as our highlighted Polo Club. Our team is
committed to building a successful and renowned brand of “Goldin”, which
represents top-quality.

Working capital

The Group’s working capital as at 31 March 2010 amounted to approximately
HK$1,934 million (2009: HK$2,979 million), representing a decrease of
approximately 35.1% when compared with the same period last year. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the utilization of bank balances and cash
of the Group in order to support the development and investment in our
Tianjin Goldin Metropolitan Project.

The current ratio of the Group changed from 4.16 times as at 31 March 2009
to 2.34 times as at 31 March 2010.

The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in either Hong Kong
dollar or Renminbi. The Group ensures that its exposure to fluctuations in
foreign exchange rates is minimized.

Besides, the Group continues to exercise rigorous control policies and is not
involved in trading of any debt securities or financial derivative products for
speculative purposes.
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As at the year end date, the Group had no contingent liability (2009: Nil), and
had commitments at approximately HK$1,611 million (2009: HK$1,139
million).

As at the year end date, the Company had contingent liabilities amounted to
HK$2 million (2009: Nil).

Although the Central Government has implemented different measures to
tame the liquidity in the property market recently, we remain our optimistic
view on the prospect of the property market in China in the near future.

Our main development focus, Tianjin, is one of the four autonomous
municipalities and an integral part of the Bohai Bay Economic Zone, has
shown a strong growth over the past few years. The Urban Planning of Tianjin
(2005-2020) reinstated the unique position of Tianjin as “one of the major
economic centers in northern China”. In addition to Beijing, Shenzhen and
Shanghai, Tianjin is the next economic powerhouse. According to China’s
Ministry of Commerce, utilized foreign direct investment of Tianjin accounted
to USD3.01 billion in the first quarter of 2010, representing an increase of
18% as compared with the corresponding period last year, which indicates
Tianjin is a popular city for foreign investment where economic activities are
active.

With the inflow of foreign capital, more multinational companies are expected
to set up their office in Tianjin, resulting in an increased demand for Grade-A
offices and high quality residential buildings. Together with rapid urbanization
and economic growth which boosts the demands of high quality property
development, the Group is well-prepared to capture valuable business
opportunities by positioning ourselves as a premier property developer in
China with well-received and high quality products and targeting the high-
end customer segments.
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The launch of the Polo Club and the low-density residential mansions is
expected to be taken place in the third quarter of 2010, marking the initial
success of the project. Enlightened by our integrated mega project experience,
we will replicate the model of the Goldin Metropolitan to other projects in
different cities throughout China, as well as consider other types of high-
growth potential property development and investment. We will continue
take our initiative role to develop high-end super-scale integrated property
projects in prime and high-growth cities, so as to capture the demands from
high purchasing power customers both inbound and overseas, who desire
high standard of living. Moreover, the Group is eager to expand land bank
when opportunities arise in order to meet our development in the future.

Given all strengths and potential, the Group is well-prepared for growth and
expansion. We are very confident in the prospects of the Group from 2010
onwards. We believe “Goldin” will become one of the well-established brand
names in the industry.

Employment and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 March 2010, the Group employed approximately 203 employees
(2009: approximately 83 employees). The staff costs for the year (including
directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately HK$81.1 million (2009:
HK$51.8 million). The Group ensures that the remuneration of its employees
are competitive and employees are rewarded on a performance related basis,
together with reference to the remuneration benchmarks in the industry and
prevailing market conditions within the general framework of the Group’s
remuneration system.
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The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the
year (2009: NIL).

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to all our
shareholders and business partners for their support, and to thank my fellow
directors for their wise counsel, and all our staff for their dedication and hard
work. We shall commit our best efforts to bring a promising future for the
Group.

Pan Sutong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 8 June 2010
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The Company is committed to the establishment and maintenance of good
corporate governance practices and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all code provisions and, where applicable, the
recommended best practices of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "Code on CG Practices”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”), except for the following deviations:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of Code on CG Practices, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual for a balance of power and authority.

The Company understands this division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer. Traditionally, the chairman provides
leadership to the board of directors and formulate, together with the board,
the business strategies and long-term objectives of the company whilst the
chief executive officer carries out the decisions made by the board of directors
and, with the support of the executive directors, is responsible for the day-to-
day management and operation of the company’s business.

Currently, Mr. Pan Sutong is serving both as the Company’s Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. However, the Board considers that this situation will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company. This is because the balance of power and
authority is ensured by the operations of the Board which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals with demonstrated integrity. Further,
decisions of the Board made by way of majority voting. The Board believes
that this structure is conductive to strong, prompt response and efficient
management and implementation.

Under the code provision A.4.1 of Code on CG Practices, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). The Board believes
that such practice will offer stability at the Board level while at the same time,
independence is safeguarded by the necessary rotation, retirement and re-
election procedures which involves shareholders’ approval.
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The Company has adopted the terms of the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code for any
part of the year ended 31 March 2010.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong (Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Huang Xiaojian

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships with each other. The Directors’ biographical information
is set out in the section headed “Directors’ Biographies” of this annual report.

Role and Function

The Board is responsible for overall strategic formulation and performance
monitoring of the Group. It delegates day-to-day operations of the Company
to the management team within the control and authority framework set by
the Board. In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to
the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee. Further details of
these committees are set out in this report.

15
IR EZER AR A E F£5H2010

Corporate Governance Report
e Y=gl ey

RABBEM TR E1085 2 ETAA
ERETEHFRSHHIZESTR) ([1ZAESFA]) -
MERESRHETENE  EFERESER
HE - ZHE=-A=+—HIEEEMAKH

EETIRESTA -

RAFHEY EFHNERTEER=A
B FERITE MM -

YITES
BRB L (ERHRITERAH)
HE BB

ABEE L
TREREE

BYFHATES

REXEL
BEREL

BR/HHEEE EFEEEARBNAFRIE
=EE|—f-

A REaE

EXSARRRIAREZBERBEIE TR RE
EERB UZREEBBFEEFSMREN
EENREERNREATEESH - W
EXZeNZRFMEZEGRERZEGHNT T
FABE  ZSZEENHBHARANEE -



16

GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2010

Corporate Governance Report
e =g a3

Role and Function (Continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group which were prepared on a going concern
basis. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Also, there is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection and appointment of the auditor.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has also conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group and is satisfied
with the results of the review.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed three Independent Non-executive Directors. All of the Independent
Non-executive Directors have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and the Company considers that all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year . Additional meetings would
be arranged, if and when required. Notices of at least 14 days are given for
regular Board meetings and the Company also aims at giving reasonable
notice for all other Board meetings. Details of Directors’ attendance records
during the year were as follows:

At N2

EXERENFERERERUE 2 AEEELE
EMBHREARNELEE - BHEEWERTH
BEZSRAIREH AR RFEKLSE 258 HBK
BEARBZEFLBR - N EFTGEEX
ZESHRMERZERBM —FLEIIE

ExefCEBERREeHASEANMER
Rz e ErTiRe - YHBRAAERRENE

BYIFHITES
BIE_EMARBIE3I0MIEREI10Q)H + AAQ
CEE=LBIEHTES - ﬁfrﬁ%i#iﬂﬁ

EEORAEEZEXEARRNG T HABY R
EEHEEAE

ARBICEESBIIFATESRE LRI
FIVBEREBIERLZFEERE - MA
RERBABELIFNTEZTERBIAL -

EEeREBEEFETHRTEZ EAFEH
SRITEINGH - THESEFRHYHELED
THEHRBAH - KRB NRAOBMBEEMESTS
FEBHAEBN AFESES LRI
HBHT

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HESBRY SEREHERE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERR T AE
Professor Huang Xiaojian HZERHKR
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun AT LA
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond TF‘?E?&%
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RERSAE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIELT
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny EEEE L

4/4
a/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4
4/4



Remuneration Committee

According to the Code on CG Practices, the Company established its
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) with a majority of
the members thereof being Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee comprises the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Pan
Sutong (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence and Dr. Ng Lai
Man, Carmen.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company is responsible for formulating
and making recommendations to the Board on the Group’s remuneration
policy and structure of the Directors and the senior management.

The members of the Remuneration Committee met once during the year and
their attendance were as follows:
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Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HEEZRE,&ERHERE

Mr. Pan Sutong EERBEE
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RERLE
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

The Board considers the determination of the appointment and removal of
Directors to be the Board’s collective decision and thus does not intend to
adopt the recommended best practice of the Code on CG Practices to set up
a nomination committee.

The rules governing the appointment, re-election and removal of Directors are
laid down in the Articles. Newly appointed Directors are required to offer
themselves for re-election at the next following general meeting (in the case
of filling a casual vacancy) or at the next following annual general meeting (in
the case of an addition to the Board) following their appointment. All
Directors (including Independent Non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation once every three years and are subject to re-election in
accordance with the Articles.

Details of the procedures for nominating candidates to stand for election at
the annual general meeting for the year 2010 are set out in the circular to
shareholders sent together with this annual report. Criteria adopted by the
Board in considering the suitability of a candidate for directorship includes his/
her qualifications, experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the
requirements under the Listing Rules.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and
has formulated its written terms of reference, which may be modified from
time to time, in accordance with the provisions set out in the Code on CG
Practices. The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence (Chairman of the
Audit Committee), Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen and Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny.

The functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor, and
any questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

2. to review the financial information of the Group; and

3. to oversee the Company’s financial reporting system and internal
control procedures.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, two meetings of the Audit
Committee were held for, amongst other things, considering and reviewing
the financial results and reports, financial reporting and compliance
procedures, internal control matters and the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company was present at each of
such meetings to report and explain to and answer questions from the
members of the Audit Committee regarding the financial reporting procedures
and results of the internal control systems implemented by the Company.

Details of the attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee
during the year were as follows:

BEREES

ARFERUBRERS (BREER])
RIELEERFMRT J%ﬁMYﬂJAEE%
HBERTHEHE] - ARABREES
SEBUFATERER - DERERRE (B
BEARIR)  REXHELREBEREL -

ERZEGZRERRE

. BB BERERBBRINEXBENES
GIEHEEERS  RAENEZEE 2
e RERER ARBEZZERE 2

BERBRRZEMEER :

2. BHRAEEZMBER: Rk

3. EEBAAR

e

A2 B mEHIE kAT

lu]

REE T ZTF-_A=Z+—HULTKFE
N BREZEFBRITIMAEH  UW(HEPR
BV EEREBEVBEERRSE  BHREK
L%&F W%?$$E&f%%%V%%$

cANRIZERVBREGAABHEZS
GE UM BREREBFRARREEANPE
TREEEZKRABZEECTEERE LR
BN EZRRE -

AEEEREZEGRE CHFEREFBNOT

Meetings attended/Eligible to attend
HESBRE SEREHERE

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REESEA
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXIEL
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny B E B 1H +

2/2
2/2
2/2



Remuneration of Auditor

During the financial year, fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, the
auditor of the Company for audit services were approximately HK$2.87
million and for non-audit services were approximately HK$85,000, which
incurred fees for the provision of tax services.

Internal Control

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control system of the Group in order to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Company’s assets.

During the financial year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, has
conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal
control of the Group and considers it is adequate and effective. The review
covers all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. The Board is not aware of any
significant areas of concern which may affect the shareholders.

The Group will use its best endeavor to further improve the Company’s
internal control system whenever necessary.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels with shareholders
including but not limited to (i) the annual general meeting provides a forum
for shareholders to raise comments and exchange views with the Board
directly; (i) printed copies of corporate communications required under the
Listing Rules; and (iii) updated and key information on the Group is available
on the website of the Company.
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Mr. Pan Sutong, aged 47, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Pan has been the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, and Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company, and is responsible for the overall strategic
planning of the Group. Mr. Pan has been engaged not only in trading and
manufacturing of electronic products in China, Hong Kong and the United
States, but also accumulated extensive experience in finance and property
development over the years. Mr. Pan is also the chairman and a non-executive
director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
(Stock Code: 530).

Professor Huang Xiaojian, aged 48, joined the Group in 2001 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in September 2006. He
has over 20 years of experience in research and development of electronic and
digital technologies. Professor Huang holds a Master Degree of
Telecommunications and Electronics from Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications and is a senior member of an Electronic Association in
China. Prior to joining the Group, he was an associate professor of Beijing
University of Posts and Telecommunications and had worked in a number of
research organizations in China. Professor Huang is also a non-executive
director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited, a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 530).

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, aged 36, joined the Group in 2006 as General Manager
of China Division, oversees the Group’s China businesses. Mr. Zhou was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in April 2008. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhou acted as legal counsel and had held senior
management posts in various corporations in China, Hong Kong and
Singapore. Mr. Zhou graduated from Dalian Maritime University with a
Bachelor Degree in International Maritime Law. He accumulated extensive
experience in corporate administration, finance, legal, international trade and
public relations.

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond, aged 51, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company in August 2008. Mr. Ting is a registered architect of
the State of California, the United States and the Architects Registration Board
of Hong Kong. He holds Bachelor Degrees in Science (Architecture) and
Architecture from the University of Southern California, and is a member of
the American Institute of Architects, the National Council of Architectural
Registration Board, the United States and the Hong Kong Institute of
Architect. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ting was a director of P&T Architects
and Engineers Limited. He has over 26 years of experience in architecture, and
in the management and co-ordination of a variety of projects in South East
Asian region, especially China and Taiwan.
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Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company in November 2002. He is also the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lai is a fellow member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, and has extensive
experience in accounting and auditing sectors.

Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in February 2004 and is a member of the Audit Committee
and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Dr. Ng has more than 20
years of experience in professional accounting and corporate finance in Hong
Kong, China, the United States, and Europe. Dr. Ng is a practicing certified
public accountant in Hong Kong, a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Certified Chartered
Accountants in United Kingdom, and an associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. Dr. Ng received her Doctor of
Business Administration Degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University,
Master of Laws Degree in Corporate and Financial Laws from The University
of Hong Kong, Master of Business Administration Degree from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, and Master of Professional Accounting Degree from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Ng is currently an independent
non-executive director of Cheong Ming Investments Limited (Stock Code:
1196) and eSun Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 571), all being listed
companies in Hong Kong.

Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny, aged 57, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2004 and is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Company. Dr. Cheng holds a Doctor of Science degree from
the Massachusetts Institute of Technology, the United States and a Master of
Business Administration Degree from the University of Western Ontario,
Canada. He had held management positions in various technology companies,
and was in charge of funding technology companies when he was with the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. Dr. Cheng is
currently engaged in environmental protection projects.
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The Board presents the annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010.

Principal Activities
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of the

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 38.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend.

Share Capital and Warrants
Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company

during the year are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Premium and Reserves
Movements in the share premium and reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are shown in Note 35 to the consolidated financial

statements on page 128 and consolidated statement of changes on equity on
page 42, respectively.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements of property, plant and equipment during the year are shown in
Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment Properties

Movements of investment properties during the year are shown in Note 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 148.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pan Sutong

Professor Huang Xiaojian

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun

Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen
Dr. Cheng Kwan Wai, Sunny

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun, Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond and Dr. Ng Lai Man,
Carmen will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting by
rotation pursuant to Article 105 of the Articles and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Director, including the Independent Non-executive
Directors, is for a period up to his/her retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Articles.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executives of the Company and their associates in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules
were as follows:

(@) Interests in shares

Name of Director/
chief executive

Long position/
short position

BEE BRETRAEBHSE

RZE—ZEF=ZA=+—H0 A2REEFEK
BITHABREEZHEALTHR AR A REE
BEBE(EERABHFRBEGRD((EHEREE
B ]) EXVER) Z B - MERD REH T
EREZBHRBEBEMEIRIEALARRDR
FTiFE 2 =Ml - SRR BT AR BUMT 8% 10FT
B IZETFABEMGRRBI MBIz s R
KRBT

@) MK zHER

Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”)
EEBSEE(EXE]D

Professor Huang Xiaojian
("Professor Huang”)

EZEHR(EHE]

Mr. Zhou Xiaojun (“Mr. Zhou")

BEELE(TAKXE]D

Long position
LIy

Long position

A

Long position
we

Appropriate
percentage of
the issued
Number of share capital of
Capacity shares held the Company
EARAR
ERTRAZ
55 BHERGHAE BB
(Note 1)
(PfFEE1)
Interest held as beneficial 782,443,341 63.99%
owner and through (Note 2)
controlled corporations (FzE2)
EREREBAR
BEEEAERE En
Beneficial owner 244,210 0.02%
EnfBEA
Beneficial owner 280,000 0.02%

BEamEE A



(b) Interests in warrants

(o)
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(b) MERRERE Z2EHE

Appropriate
percentage of
Number of the issued
Name of Director/ Long position/ underlying share capital of
chief executive short position Capacity shares held the Company
EERQF
BHEMEER EBTRAZ
EE BETHRASH®SR Ha/ KA 55 R&GEE BRBEDL
(Note 1)
(PfF7E1)
Mr. Pan Long position Interest held as beneficial 66,280,332 5.42%
EAE e owner and through (Note 3)
controlled corporation (FFzE3)
EREREAAR
HREEERRE Z#ER
Mr. Zhou Long position Beneficial owner 16,200 0.001%
IEbea S5 EnfEBA
Interests in convertible bonds (0 RAmRESZ 2R
Appropriate
percentage of
Number of the issued
Name of Director/ Long position/ underlying share capital of
chief executive short position Capacity shares held the Company
B AR
BEHEER ERTRAZ
BEE BEITHRASH®S HEKR g5 RGEE BHAED
(Note 1)
(PHEET)
Mr. Pan Long position Interest held as beneficial 378,744,765 30.97%
ETE e owner and through (Note 4)
controlled corporation (Fizx4)

EREZHBAR
MEXEEERA 2 EE
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Notes:

1.

As at 31 March 2010, the number of issued share capital of the
Company was 1,222,782,293 shares.

80,299,000 shares were held by Mr. Pan in his personal capacity,
659,134,341 shares were held by Goldin Group (Investment) Limited
(“Goldin Group (Investment)”), the immediate holding company of the
Company and 43,010,000 shares were held by Clear Jade International
Limited (“Clear Jade”). Clear Jade was 100% owned by Mr. Pan and
Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin Real Estate
Financial Holdings Limited (“Goldin Real Estate Financial”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, which in turn was 100% owned by
Mr. Pan as at 31 March 2010. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be
interested in the 659,134,341 shares held by Goldin Group (Investment)
and 43,010,000 shares held by Clear Jade. Goldin Group (Investment)
being a holding company of the Company is also an associated
corporation of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) held 366,900 units and
65,913,432 units of the warrants, respectively, as at 31 March 2010.
Upon full exercise of the subscription rights attaching to the warrants at
the subscription price of HK$6 per share, 366,900 shares and
65,913,432 shares will be issued to Mr. Pan and Goldin Group
(Investment), respectively. Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned
by Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr.
Pan as at 31 March 2010. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be
interested in the warrants held by Goldin Group (Investment).

Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment) held the convertible bonds with
nominal value of HK$7,337,998.50 and HK$1,318,268,679,
respectively, as at 31 March 2010. Upon full conversion of the
convertible bonds at the conversion price of HK$3.50 per share (as
adjusted on 27 August 2009), 2,096,571 shares and 376,648,194
shares will be issued to Mr. Pan and Goldin Group (Investment),
respectively. Goldin Group (Investment) was 100% owned by Goldin
Real Estate Financial, which in turn was 100% owned by Mr. Pan as at
31 March 2010. Accordingly, Mr. Pan was deemed to be interested in
the convertible bonds held by Goldin Group (Investment).
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

Save as disclosed above and those as disclosed in the section headed
"Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of Shareholders under the SFO”
below, none of the Directors and chief executives of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as at
31 March 2010.

Discloseable Interests and Short Positions of
Shareholders under the SFO

As at 31 March 2010, the following persons or corporations (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far
as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company:

(@) Interests in shares

Long position/
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B 2 (R iR RO R

AW |
\
~N

{\- /I
h=

R 9% e 2 M ] 0k i 28 T %
< I A HE g B IR A
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BREARREFXRZRRITHRAR) RARA K
D LA D TR HEEREEZES LB RS
BIRBALAARABAFEZELRMAZEERE
HARE

() R zHER

Appropriate
percentage of
the issued

Number of share capital of

Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company

EA AR

ERITRAZ

RERAEME BR/ KR &7 RHEROEE BABED

(Note 1)

(BH3ET)

Goldin Group (Investment) Long position Beneficial owner 659,134,341 53.90%

(Note 2) " EREAA

SIREE (RE) (MaE2)

Atlantis Investment Long position Investment manager 121,506,000 9.94%

Management Ltd A

BB KR
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(b) MEBERG 2EHE

(b) Interests in underlying shares

Appropriate
percentage of
Number of the issued
Long position/ underlying share capital of
Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company
EARAR
KA EBITREZ
RERERE Ba/ KRR 52 R&HEE BRBEDL
(Note 1)
(MHEE1)
Goldin Group (Investment) Long position Beneficial owner 65,913,432 5.39%
(Note 2) HE EmEBA (Note 3)
=IREE (RE) (MHF2) (PFEE3)
Appropriate
percentage of
Number of the issued
Long position/ underlying share capital of
Name of shareholder short position Capacity shares held the Company
EERQT
BHEHEER EBTRAZ
REEARE HEKE %) g = BHAESL
(Note 1)
(fF3E1)
Goldin Group (Investment) Long position Beneficial owner 376,648,194 30.80%
(Note 2) S~ EnEBEA (Note 4)
=IRE®E (RE) (MF2) (P 3E4)
Notes: HiaE
1. Asat 31 March 2010, the number of issued shares in the . R-F-—FF=ZA=1-—A,
share capital of the Company was 1,222,782,293 shares. AR AR B ERETRGEH
H #%1,222,782,293 8 & 17
2. Asat 31 March 2010, Goldin Group (Investment) was 2. R-F—FF=FA=+—H"

EREE(KRE)HEREH
HEEF100% » 5 iR 2 /@
iy EE A H1)& SEAEFEF 100% °

100% owned by Goldin Real Estate Financial, which in turn
was 100% owned by Mr. Pan.



(b) Interests in underlying shares (continued)

3. Goldin Group (Investment) held 65,913,432 units of the
warrants as at 31 March 2010. Upon full exercise of the
subscription rights attaching to the warrants at the
subscription price of HK$6 per share, 65,913,432 shares
will be issued to Goldin Group (Investment).

4. Goldin Group (Investment) held the convertible bonds with
a nominal value of HK$1,318,268,679 as at 31 March
2010. Upon full conversion of the convertible bonds at the
conversion price of HK$3.50 per share (as adjusted on 27
August 2009), 376,648,194 shares will be issued to Goldin
Group (Investment).

Save as disclosed above, there was no person or corporation, other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company, who had an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO as at 31 March 2010.

Pursuant to the share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted on 27 August
2002 by a resolution passed by the Company’s shareholders on the same
date, the Directors of the Company may grant options as incentives to any
participants as described in the Scheme for the shares in the Company within
a period of ten years commencing from 27 August 2002 at the price
determined by the Directors of the Company. Such price shall not be lower
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the average of the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total
number of shares of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. An
option may be exercised at any time within ten years from the date of grant
of the relevant option.
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Share Options (continued)

The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share option ~ F&RBEENFAARRABRES S 2 15 ¢
movements during the year:
(i) Directors iy &=
Number of share options
BREZE
Granted Exercised Lapsed
Subscription  Exercisable Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Name of Director Date of grant price per share  period at 1.4.2009 the year the year theyear at31.3.2010
R-ZBAE R-E-ZF
mA—A =ZA=+-8
EEHE REAH SRABE TS HARITE  FRERH FRETE FABXX RATHE
HK$
BT
Professor Huang 3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2010 t0 2.8.2019 — 180,000 — — 180,000
BHE —ETAFN\A=H —Z-ZTF)\A=HZ
“E-AFNAZA
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2011 10 2.8.2019 — 180,000 — — 180,000
—EFNFNAZH —T——F)\A=RZE
~“ZE-AFNAZA
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2012 10 2.8.2019 — 240,000 — — 240,000
“TTRAFNAZR —T-—F)\R=RZE
“Z-NAFNAZA
— 600,000 — — 600,000
Mr. Zhou 3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2010 t0 2.8.2019 — 300,000 — — 300,000
A%E —EEAFN\AZH —Z-TF/\R=HZ
“T-NAFNAZH
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2011 10 2.8.2019 — 300,000 — — 300,000
—ETAFN\AZH —Z——%/\A=HZ
“ZT-AFNAAZH
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2012 t0 2.8.2019 — 400,000 — — 400,000
—ETAFN\AZH —Z-—F)\R=HZ
“E-AFNAZA
— 1,000,000 — — 1,000,000
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, 3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.20101t02.8.2019 — 600,000 — — 600,000
Edmond —ETNENRZH —Z-TF/\A=ZHZ
TREREE “T-NAFNAZR
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2011 10 2.8.2019 — 600,000 — — 600,000
—ETNENAZH —Z——%/\R=HZ
“T-NAFNAAZA
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2012 t0 2.8.2019 — 800,000 — — 800,000
—EEAFNAZH —E-—FN\R=RZE
“T-NAFNAZA
— 2,000,000 — — 2,000,000
— 3,600,000 — — 3,600,000




Share Options (continued)

(ii) Employees (other than Directors)
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(i) EE (E=EKR)

Number of share options

B AR 2B
Subscription Granted Exercised
price Outstanding during during Lapsed during Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.4.2009 the year the year the year at 31.3.2010
R-ZZNF R-Z—-2F
A—H =A=+-—H
R BM BRABE TEH HMARTHE FRERE FRETE FREXRK 8 RATBE
HK$
BT
5.2.2004 1.20 5.2.2005 t0 4.2.2014 672,630 — — — 672,630
—ETWMF-_AERH —ZTHFE-_ARHZE
—E-mE-AWA
20.4.2004 1.42 20.4.2004 to 19.4.2014 567,783 — — — 567,783
—ZETEFMA=-+H —ETEFMA-+EE
—ZE-mEMA+IE
28.9.2005 1.32 28.9.2005 to 27.9.2015 1,621,050 — (200,000) — 1,421,050
—ZZREANAZTN\H —ZETRFEAAZTBE
—E-AFNAA=+tH
27.11.2007 6.56  27.11.2007 t0 26.11.2017 8,000,000 — — — 8,000,000
“EELE+—A=T+tH “ETELF+—AZ+LRE
—E—+tF+—-—RA=-+X<A8
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2010t0 2.8.2019 — 3,714,000 — (198,000) 3,516,000
—ETAFNAZ=H —E-TFNA=HZE
—E-AFENAZH
3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2011 t0 2.8.2019 — 3,714,000 — (198,000) 3,516,000
—ETAFN\AZ=H —E——FNA=HE
—E-AFNAZH
3.8.2009 330 3.8.2012t02.8.2019 — 4,952,000 — (264,000) 4,688,000
—ZZAENRZ=H e A =
—ZE-hFENAZH
10,861,463 12,380,000 (200,000) (660,000) 22,381,463
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(iii) Other participants (i) HfbzgEE
Number of share options
B AR 2B
Subscription Granted Exercised
price Outstanding during during Lapsed during Outstanding
Date of grant per share  Exercisable period at 1.4.2009 the year the year the year at 31.3.2010
R-ZZNF R-Z—-2F
A—H =A=+-—H
R BM SRABE TEH HMARTHE FRERE FRETE FREXRXK 8 RATBE
HK$
BT
5.2.2004 1.20 5.2.2005 t0 4.2.2014 2,657,875 — — — 2,657,875
—ZETWFE_AAH —ZTHFE-_ARHZE
—E-mE-AWA
20.4.2004 1.42 20.4.2004 to 19.4.2014 367,695 — — — 367,695
—ZETEFMA=-+H —ETEFMA-+EE

—E-mOFmPA+AR

3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2010 t0 2.8.2019 — 2,205,000 — — 2,205,000
—TTHhENA=A —ZE-ZEE/\A=ZHZE
—ZE-NFENAZH

3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2011 t0 2.8.2019 — 2,205,000 — — 2,205,000
—TERFNA=AR —T——F\A=HZE
—T-hAFENAZH

3.8.2009 3.30 3.8.2012 t0 2.8.2019 — 2,940,000 — — 2,940,000
—TETAFNA=AH —T-——FN\A=HZE
—E-AFNAZH

3,025,570 7,350,000 — — 10,375,570

The vesting period of the share options under the Scheme is from the date of &t &l THEREZ GEH AR L AHREITHE
grant until the commencement of the exercisable period. GRS IE o

The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 3 August 2009, EE-ZTTNFNA=A (BRERXLBH) 2
the date of share options granted was HK$3.25 per share. Al - AREIRG 2 W ERER325E T ¢



Details of distributable reserves of the Company are set out in Note 35 to the
financial statements.

During the year, the Company had transactions with related companies in
which a Director of the Company has controlling interests, details of which
are set out in Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which any of the Directors of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration
Committee, having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and prevailing market conditions.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees, details of the scheme are set out in Note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group had no turnover and the
aggregate amount of construction costs attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers represented approximately 81% of the Group’s total
construction costs for the year. The aggregate amount of construction costs
for the year attributable to the Group’s largest supplier for the year was 49%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder, which to the
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital, has interests in these suppliers during the year.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company's Listed Securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2010.

Management Contract

No contract for management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company was entered into or existed
during the year.

Corporate Governance

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company has complied with
the Code on CG Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules with
deviations from certain provisions of the Code on CG Practices, details of
which are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code as at 31 March
2010.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent.

Audit Committee

The audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2010 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. Information on the work
of Audit Committee and its composition are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report of the annual report.
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A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of —IREHMEZIRERE « MERTFMITRAR
the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the AIZBAIZ ABE RN EERRBF NG L2

Company. E

On behalf of the Board REESS
Pan Sutong BE B
Director EFE

Hong Kong, 8 June 2010 BB —E-FEXANA
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Goldin Properties
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) set out on pages 38 to 147, which comprise the Group’s
and the Company’s statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010, and
the Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
controls relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal controls relevant to the Group’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors of the Company, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

8 June 2010
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ — % —ZF=H =+ —H L4 EZ
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTEx FHT
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Turnover EHERE = —
Cost of sales HEKA — —
Gross profit EH — -
Other income Ha g A 8 6,778 32,280
Administrative expenses THEH (135,002) (124,580)
Foreign exchange gains (losses), net SN W as (548 ) JF 58 32,892 (118,674)
Finance costs MBE N 10 (248,261) (209,814)
Increase (decrease) in fair value of BEYE 7 AN FEEN
investment properties ORL) 18 1,700,340 (473,470)
Gains on conversion option derivative of AR RS 2 AR
convertible bonds and other derivative PTET A RHEAMITA
financial instruments TRTAEZKE 11 17,054 980,937
Profit before taxation Fé %% A1 i A 12 1,373,801 86,679
Taxation (charge) credit FRIE (ZH)Ee 13 (444,194) 116,386
Profit for the year from continuing REREER 2
operations F 5 F 929,607 203,065
Discontinued operations ERIEEEEIE
Profit for the year from discontinued ERIECEER 2
operations FE A 14 = 527,228
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KA & #E A AEM
the Company FEEHA 929,607 730,293
Other comprehensive income (expense) H#t2EW A (Bi%)
Exchange difference arising WEIGINETSFTE &
on translation PE 3 =58 24,733 254,345
Reclassification adjustment upon disposals HEMB AR ZEH
of subsidiaries DT = (267,403)
Other comprehensive income (expense) RNEFHA 2 E A
for the year (M) 24,733 (13,058)
Total comprehensive income for the year KAREE ANELEE
attributable to owners of the Company SHEIB AL 954,340 717,235
Earnings (loss) per share BRERN (BFA) 16
From continuing and discontinued RERERER
operations BRIEEEXERS
— basic N 76.03 HK cents 71l 59.73 HK cents /&l
— diluted —g 70.82 HK cents &{li  29.77 HK cents /&1l
From continuing operations REABFEEEER
— basic —HK 76.03 HK cents 7l 16.61 HK cents /&1Ll

— diluted — s 70.82 HK cents 7&1ll  (3.71) HK cents /&1l
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At 31 March 2010 4 — & —Z4FE=H =1+—H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ihg=4 FET AT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE MEE 17 326,607 79,152
Investment properties AW 18 5,762,928 2,419,330
Prepaid lease payments TEfT & KT 19 161,333 1,205,780
Intangible assets | EE 20 90 90
6,250,958 3,704,352
Current assets mBNEE
Properties under development for sale BRPFEYE 22 2,197,345 1,937,880
Prepaid lease payments TR HEERIE 19 4,137 =
Trade and other receivables JE 5 B K B L it B LK
and deposits *,’KIE&?*A 24 259,747 328,216
Amounts due from related companies i NGIE @) 25 178 82
Pledged bank deposits B RIRT TT?A 27 6,726 1,000
Bank balances and cash RITEFERR S 27 585,748 1,331,453
3,053,881 3,598,631
Assets classified as held for sale SEABEHEELE ZEKE 23 325,277 323,559
3,379,158 3,922,190
Current liabilities nE A E
Trade and other payables J?EHEE%’A’&EMFEH wIE 28 1,065,648 611,152
Amount due to a related company B —EEE AR RIE 29 44,381 6,542
Taxation payable JE B TR IB 28,481 20,111
Obligations under finance leases BMEREES
— amount due within one year ——FRNEHFIA
30 44 44
1,138,554 637,849
Liabilities directly associated with BoEABEELEE 2
assets classified as held for sale BEBEEBHNARE 23 306,720 305,100
1,445,274 942,949
Net current assets B EEFE 1,933,884 2,979,241
Total assets less current liabilities BEMAEBRTHAE 8,184,842 6,683,593



GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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At31March2010 A =& —F4E = =+ —H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=4 FET AT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Obligations under finance leases BMEBREES —
— amount due after one year —FEF A 30 94 134
Convertible bonds (including conversion AR E S (B3N
option derivative) HAREPTAE T A) 31 1,667,247 1,539,673
Other derivative financial instruments HEmfiTASmMIT A 32 378 27,270
Deferred tax liabilities REBIEAEE 33 719,527 292,886
2,387,246 1,859,963
5,797,596 4,823,630
Capital and reserves AR A K 7% 1
Share capital file 34 61,139 61,129
Reserves fE 5,736,457 4,762,501
Total equity REm s 5,797,596 4,823,630

The consolidated financial statements on pages 38 to 147 were approved and ~#RE3BEETAZ AN BREAN T —

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 June 2010 and are signed THFANANBEESSHERFEEAM - WA
on its behalf by: THEERKRESE
Pan Sutong Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
BB TESR
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE
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At31March 2010 A —F —FHE=H=+—H
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
[z TExT AT
Non-current assets FERBEE
Intangible assets BEE 20 90 90
Investments in subsidiaries M B AR E 21 674,602 302,468
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU M B A R R IR 26 5,087,325 5,149,897
5,762,017 5,452,455
Current assets MBEE
Other receivables H b fE U TR TE 24 — 128,028
Bank balances and cash RITEFNEAS 27 1,027 710
1,027 128,738
Current liabilities mEBEE
Other payables H A JE < FOE 28 1,702 1,159
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN NGIE 26 129,889 129,898
Amount due to a related company B —MEREE A B IE 29 44,381 6,542
Taxation payable FE 55 % 18 1,982 1,982
177,954 139,581
Net current liabilities nBBEFE (176,927) (10,843)
Total assets less current liabilities BELBERTBEE 5,585,090 5,441,612
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Convertible bonds (including conversion AN E S (B H 8
option derivative) HEESTET A) 31 1,667,247 1,539,673
Other derivative financial instruments HiiTESmT A 32 378 27,270
1,667,625 1,566,943
3,917,465 3,874,669
Capital and reserves N
Share capital A% 2 34 61,139 61,129
Reserves M 35 3,856,326 3,813,540
Total equity W= 4258 3,917,465 3,874,669
Pan Sutong Ting Kwang Yuan, Edmond
BEE TER
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
f 7 B fi 5 B ¥R 5%

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG 2PN 3
Share-based Equity Capital PRC
Share Share compensation Translation participants redemption  statutory  Retained Minority
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserves profits Total interests Total
R RA& & ol 2
BEx  ROEE HefE RERE SEARE RERE EERE  REERN @i RRER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiET FiET FEL FiER FiET FET FET FET FEL FEL FEL
(Note 35) (Note 35)
(Bi7E35) (Bt 5£35)
At 1 April 2008 RZZENF
mA—B#&# 61,123 2,961,700 33,760 305,578 (201,860) 173 74,278 854,650 4,089,402 — 4,089,402
Profit for the year EREHRAN = = = = — — — 730,293 730,293 — 730,293
Exchange difference arising WEEHNER
on translation FEEER =S — — — 254,345 — — — — 254,345 = 254,345
Reclassification adjustment upon  HE&F B AR 2
disposals of subsidiaries BN EAR — — — (267,403) — — — — (267,403) = (267,403)
Other comprehensive REEHM
expense for the year 2HMAX — — — (13,058) — — — — (13,058) = (13,058)
Total comprehensive (expense) KEEZ2HE
income for the year (Fx) A& — — — (13,058) — — — 730,293 717,235 — 717,235
Deemed contribution upon R & — KR
disposal of a subsidiary REBRELTE
(Note 38) (P EE38) = = = = 5,352 = = = 5,352 — 5,352
Reversal upon disposals of & B 2 AR
subsidiaries & — — — — — — (74,278) 74,278 — — —
Surrender of share options MEBRE — — (6,453) — 10,590 — - 6,453 10,590 - 10,590
Exercise of warrants TR ER 6 1,045 — — — — — - 1,051 - 1,051
Acquisition of a subsidiary W —AMB AR — — — — — — — — = 214,700 214,700
Obligation to acquire minority ~ UBE L Bk B2
interests (Note 37(ii)) E 1T (B 5E37(i) — — — — — — — — —  (214,700) (214,700
At 31 March 2009 RZZZAF=A
=t+—A#H 61,129 2,962,745 27,307 292,520 (185,918) 173 — 1665674 4,823,630 — 4,823,630
Profit for the year FERA — — — = = = = 929,607 929,607 — 929,607
Exchange difference arising WERINER
on translation FELEXZE — — — 24,733 — — — — 24,733 — 24,733
Total comprehensive income AEFEZERA
for the year B — — — 24,733 — — — 929,607 954,340 — 954,340
Recognition of RABAEE
equity-settled share-based BRI A
payments ER 2R — — 19,612 — — — — — 19,612 — 19,612
Exercise of share options TEERE 10 339 (85) — — — — — 264 — 264
Lapse of share options BRERR — — (250) — — — — — (250) — (250)
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE—Z4F=A

=t—B&S 61,139 2,963,084 46,584 317,253 (185,918) 173 — 2,595,281 5,797,596 —  5797,5%
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 #{ £ — % —ZHF=H =+ — H L4 EZ
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHEIT
Operating activities KR
Profit for the year AN i A 929,607 730,293
Adjustments for: Ve T 5| Z %
Allowance for inventories FEEE — 18,313
Amortisation of trade marks (RS %] = 11,951
(Increase) decrease in fair value of REYENFE (M)
investment properties B (1,700,340) 473,470
Depreciation of property, plant mE - HWE &
and equipment BRIETE 2,355 10,823
Finance costs W% ER 248,261 355,565
Gains on conversion option derivative AR RS 2 5
of convertible bonds and other PTET A NEM
derivative financial instruments PTEeMIA 2l (17,054) (1,028,449)
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries LS B R R TS M — (322,191)
Interest income FEWA (5,988) (69,490)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE &
plant and equipment Bz (W) BB (3) 69
Release of prepaid lease payments TR ERIFE = 13,187
Share-based payments PARR (D B A2
expenses, net MRz ERFE 19,362 =
Taxation charge (credit) HESH (Ee) 444,194 (64,033)
Unrealised exchange difference REIRE R EZR (6,069) (61,959)
Operating cash flows before movements K&t &3EE & & FHal
in working capital IIRER G RE (85,675) 67,549
Increase in properties under development 2R P FE
for sale LyEESRil| (177,367) (995,422)
Increase in inventories FEIE M — (145,746)
Decrease in trade and other receivables JE UK BR 2k & B At
and deposits JE W RIB K iR R 81,609 86,734
(Decrease) increase in trade and JE AT B 3K B EL At 8 1<t R IE
other payables OB A) #hn (74,898) 499,038
Cash used in operations HE TSI R (256,331) (487,847)
Taxation paid F T (22,856) (11,310)
Net cash used in operating activities K IRENIR SN FE (279,187) (499,157)
Investing activities KEZH
Purchases of prepaid lease payments BATBNHEERIEA (34,080) (1,048,887)
Purchase of assets classified as held for sale BEA DB AZEEIEHE
2EBE — (323,559)
Purchases of property, plant and BAME - BER&#E
equipment (104,559) (78,710)
Construction cost paid in respect of MERTIGEYE
investment properties under AT EK A
development (266,301) =
Acquisition of assets and liabilities through 3% i@ Us & bt 2B A 7] U B8
acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash BERBE (kTR E
and cash equivalent acquired) 2R KBS EEY) 37 — 56
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEMHE  BERKE
plant and equipment BT 1S 318 8 (85
(Advance to) repayments from related BiENT (FEN) 8RR
companies (96) 1,850
Interest received 2 YR & 5,988 69,490
Disposals of subsidiaries (net of cash and ~ HEME A T (NEBEFFLE
cash equivalents disposed of) ZHEENREEEY) 38 — 90,323
(Increase) decrease in pledged bank BRI (35 0)
deposits VoA (5,726) 294,410
Deposit received for disposal of assets HEIBAREIELREZ
classified as held for sale B E 2 EWRIE 23 — 305,100
Net cash used in investing activities WERERE M FE (404,766) (689,792)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Financing activities
Repayments of bank loans
Interest and finance charges paid
Repayments of trust receipt loans
Repayments of obligations under
finance leases

Repayment to ultimate holding company

Proceeds from issue of shares
upon exercise of warrants
Proceeds from issue of shares upon
exercise of share options
Repayments from related companies
Advances from a related company
New bank loans raised

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash

Notes
B 5
RLEEE
EERITER

ENHNERMEER
ERBIBEETER
REBERE
BEE
QESESY YNl F
RITE R AR
B A7 P 1S SR8
IRTTE R AR RS 32 7T
B A7 P 1S SR8
BE R RE N
—HRE QRN IR
BEHNZRITER

BEEPR ML FE
AehkBReFEWZ
B A R

%47

FUZRER
REeFEY

INEIEREE) o E

FRZBER
ReFEY

RekReEEY
ZREFEDH
RITEFRRS

2010

S
HK$'000
FE

(56,800)
(106,419)

(40)

264

37,839
56,800
(68,356)

(752,309)

1,331,453

6,604

585,748

585,748

2009
—ZETNF
HK$'000
FH& T

(965,623)
(260,190)
(254,664)

(227)
(30)

706

158,045

914,466
(407,517)

(1,596,466)

2,800,033

127,886

1,331,453

1,331,453



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H [L4F

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” included in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is different from the functional currency of the Company,
Renminbi (“RMB") as the Company is a public company incorporated
in Hong Kong with its shares listed on the Stock Exchange, where most
of its investors are located in Hong Kong and therefore, the Directors
consider that Hong Kong dollars is preferable in presenting the
operating results and financial position of the Company and the Group.
The majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are operating in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") with RMB as their functional currency.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010 are set out in Note 45.

IR EZRER AR

ARBR—ERBEEMAILZ EHE
RAR ERDREBBAEXZIMAR
RNAE(TBERPT]) £ » AR R 2
ERNEIBEEMB 2 HUNFRZIA
AERIARE -

BAEMBHRERAEBITZY > MIERER
AEEEARB(TARE] 27 It
THRRARB A —HREEEMAILZ
EHRE EROTARBRA LS - M
HAMPREENMUREE  WLESF
REBABT2NARARANEBLEE
BRBMBEHRRT EBE - XARAFH
MEBAR TN EARKME(THE])
e REZNEEBR/ARE -

ARBR—HREZERAR  EXEN
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

RAFEE  AEERARFCEANRT

In the current year, the Group and the Company have applied the

following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"),
amendments and Hong Kong (IFRIC) Interpretations (“HK (IFRIC)-Int"”)
(“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1

(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27

(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 &

HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008, except
for the amendment to HKFRS 5 that is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in relation
to the amendment to paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

Presentation of Financial Statements

Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from Customers

MEBGAMAG(EAGAMAE])
Bz ¥l BT EEGFEN(E
AR - 5T RBE (BRM %R
sREZEe 2B (ERMBR
TREZEE) 2B ([T REER]
FEMBHREER]) -

BERPBRELER
CCHIEN)

B B8 8 A
CHES)

BEREGERAE R
(ZETEFEBET)

BEA G ERIE235%
(ZZTLFEEBE)

BAEGERIE32%R
PEILACHEN)

BRI BRE LR
FIRRBEE S
E R 275% (BFTA)

BAMEREER
E25 (BRI A)

BRI BRE R
EVEACCHEN)

BEAMREER
EXL

B (ABRPERE
REZEE)—RE
BOHFREE G
85395 (ERTA)

B (ABRPERE
REZEg)—
REE135%

B (AR B®RE
REZE8g)—
ZEE 1S

B4 (BBRUBRE
REZBEY)—RE
FE165%

B (ARUBHRE
REZEY)—RE
F185%

RZTTNERHGZES
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BBRERZE5

BB A
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RETEAR] - R
EBSHMEARZ
&R A

BB REH

SRTARE 2B

FHERERS

KGR B FE 2 E
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F

The adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs has had no material effect
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the financial
position of the Company for the current or prior accounting periods
except for the impact as described below.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes (including
revised titles for the consolidated financial statements) and changes in
the format and content of the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires operating segments to
be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker
for the purpose of allocating resources to segments and assessing
their performance. The application of the HKFRS 8 has not resulted in
a redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments (see Note 7). In
addition, there are no changes in the basis of measurement of segment
revenue, segment profit or loss, segment assets and segment liabilities.

IR EZRER AR

BRAT AT 2 85 SRR R E
REBVMBHREEANTEHAEE 25
EMBRRRARAN B ATSHBES
HIRZMBIRAEREATE

AFE 25 KW BIRTE] K AL
BRI BB M HREER

EB RIS 1R (CBRLEEE)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation
and disclosure only (Continued)

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs that were
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
a qualifying asset when they were incurred. HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)
removes the option previously available to expense all borrowing costs
when incurred. The adoption of HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) has resulted
in the Group changing its accounting policy to capitalise all such
borrowing costs as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The Group
has applied the revised accounting policy to borrowing costs relating to
qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is
on or after 1 April 2009 in accordance with the transitional provisions
in HKAS 23 (Revised 2007). As the revised accounting policy has been
applied prospectively from 1 April 2009, this change in accounting
policy has not resulted in restatement of amounts reported in respect
of prior accounting periods. In the current year, the application of the
revised accounting policy has had no material effect on the results and
financial position of the Group.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in relation
to fair value measurements in respect of financial instruments which
are measured at fair value. The amendments also expand and amend
the disclosures required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not
provided comparative information for the expanded disclosures in
accordance with the transitional provision set out in the amendments.
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New and revised HKFRSs affecting the reported
results and/or financial position

As part of Improvements to HKFRSs (2008), HKAS 40 has been
amended to include within its scope properties under construction or
development for future use as investment properties and to require
such properties to be measured at fair value (where the fair value model
is used and the fair values of the properties are reliably determinable).
In the past, the leasehold land and building elements of investment
properties under construction were accounted for separately. The
leasehold land element was accounted for as an operating lease and
the building element was carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any. The Group has used the fair value model to account for its
investment properties.

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 40 prospectively from
1 April 2009 in accordance with the relevant transitional provision. As
a result of the application of the amendment, the Group’s investment
properties under construction that include the leasehold land and
buildings elements in prepaid lease payments and property, plant and
equipment with previous carrying amounts of HK$1,206 million and
HK$72 million as at 1 April 2009, respectively, have been reclassified as
investment properties and measured at fair value from that date and as
at 31 March 2010, with the fair value gain of approximately HK$1,700
million and related deferred tax expense of approximately HK$425
million.

FEOBEXRAR RA BN
M E] R RIEE] BB B AR
= XEH

ER_ZTN\FRHAZERBVBHRSE
Az B — 81 - BA R ERFE40
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New and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued but

are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK(FRIC)-Int 14
(Amendment)

HK(FRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009°

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010°

Related Party Disclosures’

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements'

Classification of Rights Issues®

Eligible Hedged Items'

Additional Exemptions for First-time
Adopters*
Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS
7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters®
Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment
Transactions*

Business Combinations'

Financial Instruments®

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding
Requirement’

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners'

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

C 78 5 {8 [a) R 2 XA HT R I

43

BRI BB B HRELER
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New and revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
and 1 January 2011, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting for
business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1
July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and will be effective
from 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted. The Standard
requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to
be measured at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that (i) are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at fair value. The
application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s financial assets.
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The Directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
other new and revised Standards, Amendments or Interpretations will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA.
In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Companies
Ordinance. The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries) made up to 31 March each year. Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.
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Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations are recognised at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and initially
measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the business
combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties were measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values
using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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Investment properties (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction. Starting from 1 April 2009,
investment properties under construction are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Any difference between the fair value
of the investment properties under construction and their carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than properties under development
and construction in progress are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment other than properties under development and
construction in progress over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of their estimated residual values, using the
straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in
the course of construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Prior to 1 April 2009, property that was being constructed or developed
for future use as an investment property was included in properties
under development until construction or development was completed,
at which time it was reclassified to and subsequently accounted for as
an investment property. Any difference between the fair value of the
properties at that date and its previous carrying amount was recognised
in profit or loss. Upon adoption of amendments to HKAS 40, that
property has been reclassified as an investment property at 1 April
2009.
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected
useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where shorter, the
term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or
loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the leasehold land
component is classified as a prepaid lease payment and amortised over
a straight-line basis over the lease term. During the construction period,
the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is included
as part of costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified impairment losses.
Depreciation of buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for them to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management).

Prepaid lease payments

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term except where
the properties are classified as assets classified as held for sale and
properties under development for sale.
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Intangible assets

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired separately are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with
finite useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible
and intangible assets below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of intangible assets are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss in the
period when the asset is derecognised.

Expenditure on research activities was recognised as an expense in the
period in which it was incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure was recognised only if it was anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project would be
recovered through future commercial activity. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be amortised, development expenditure
was charged to profit or loss in the period in which it was incurred.

Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale which are intended to be held for
sale in the ordinary course of business are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value and are shown as current assets. Cost includes
the cost of land, construction cost and other development expenditure
and other attributable expenses. Net realisable value is determined by
management based on prevailing market conditions.
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Assets classified as held for sale

Assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale
is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its
present condition.

Assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. In addition, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount
of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset/liability and of allocating interest income/
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset/liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income/expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from related companies, amounts due from
subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits and bank balances) are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all loans and receivables with the exception of trade receivables and
amounts due from subsidiaries, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable and amounts due from subsidiaries are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and
the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Convertible bonds contain liability and conversion option
derivative

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both liability and
conversion option components are classified separately into respective
items on initial recognition. Conversion option that will be settled other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both the liability and
conversion option components are recognised at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible bonds
is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
conversion option derivative is measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds are
allocated to the liability and conversion option derivative in proportion
to the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the
conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss immediately.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included in the
carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Other derivative financial instruments

Other derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derivatives of the Group do not qualify for hedge accounting and thus
they are deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities
held for trading.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and characteristics
are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Obligation to acquire minority interests

A forward contract which contains an obligation to acquire minority
interest of a subsidiary by delivering a fixed amount of cash and
receiving a fixed number of the subsidiary’s shares is recognised as a
financial liability. At initial recognition, the financial liability is measured
at the present value of the contracted amount (consideration payable)
with a corresponding debit to equity-minority interests and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts
due to subsidiaries and amount due to a related company) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Warrants/options issued by the Company that will be settled by other
than a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is a derivative financial instrument. Warrants/options
classified as a derivative financial instrument are recognised at their fair
values at the date of issue. They are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

If the fair values of the convertible bonds issued to existing shareholders
of the Company upon initial recognition is in excess of the proceeds
received, such excess is recognised as a distribution to equity
participants in equity.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in
profit or loss for the period.
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Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s entities are translated from their
functional currencies to the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (the translation reserve). Exchange differences
arising from transaction of foreign operation are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group
at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to
the lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between
finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged directly to profit or loss.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a
straight-line basis.
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Leasing (Continued)

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating leases and
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those
that are classified and accounted for as investment properties under the
fair value model.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, state-
managed pension schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale for
which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April
2009, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation

Taxation charge represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred taxation.
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Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from the profit as reported in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other year, and it further
excludes statement of comprehensive income items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred taxation is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or
the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred taxation reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Deferred taxation is recognised in profit
or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred
taxation is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before
1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
Group's consolidated financial statements until such time as the options
are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of
the value of options in the year. Upon the exercise of the share options,
the resulting shares issued are recorded by the Company as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares and the excess of
the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the share is
recorded by the Company as share premium. Options which lapse or
are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based compensation reserve) or recognised as
an expense in full at the grant date when the share option granted vest
immediately.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited subsequent to vesting
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to other share option scheme participants
Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are measured
at the fair values of the goods or services received, unless that fair
value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or services
received are measured by reference to the fair value of the share
options granted. The fair values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses immediately, unless the goods or services qualify
for recognition as assets. Corresponding adjustment has been made to
equity (share-based compensation reserve).
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.

Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting the
above criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the Directors of the Company are required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing material adjustments to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by independent professional valuers. In determining the fair
value, the valuers have based on a method of valuation which involves
certain estimates of market conditions. In relying on the valuation
report, the Directors of the Company have exercised their judgement
and are satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation are
reflective of the current market conditions.

Fair values of conversion option derivative of
convertible bonds and other derivative financial
instruments

The Directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting an
appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not quoted
in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly used by market
practitioners are applied.

The fair values of conversion option derivative of convertible bonds
and other derivative financial instruments are subject to the limitation
of the Binominal model that incorporated market data and involved
uncertainty in estimates used by management in the assumptions.
Because the Binominal model requires the input of highly subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of share price, changes in subjective
input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate. Details
of the assumptions used are disclosed in Notes 31 and 32.
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Income taxes

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of tax losses of
HK$132,990,000 (2009: HK$136,858,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In case where the actual
future profits generated are more than expected, additional recognition
of deferred tax assets may arise, which should be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in
which it takes place.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and retained profits, as disclosed in Note
35 and consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

The Directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Directors of the Company prepare the annual
budget taking into account of the provision of funding. Based on the
proposed annual budget, the Directors of the Company consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the management of the Group, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of
existing debt, if necessary.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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The Group’s and the Company’s major financial instruments include
trade and other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
subsidiaries, amounts due from related companies, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trade and other payables, amounts due to
subsidiaries, amount due to a related company, convertible bonds
(including conversion option derivative) and other derivative financial
instruments. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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There has been no change to the Group’s exposure to these kinds of
risks or the manner in which it manages and measures.

(a) Categories of financial instruments (@) R ITEEH
The Group The Company
rEE KAF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-FF5 —TTHhF ZEB-ZEF ITTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT FExT FAT
Financial assets THEE
Loans and receivables B & W R IE
(including cash and (BERe R
cash equivalents) NEEEY) 837,055 1,644,768 5,088,352 5,278,635
Financial liabilities TEHEE
Amortised cost BSHR AR 2,368,537 1,759,682 1,434,503 1,280,500
Conversion option derivative ] # % (& % 2 X 4
of convertible bonds HESTAET A 408,659 396,715 408,659 396,715

Other derivative HEmiTAEemIT A
financial instruments 378 27,270 378 27,270
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(b) Interest rate risk

(©

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to
the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate on bank
deposits. The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
which related primarily to the liability component of convertible
bonds issued by the Company. The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, the management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank deposits
and the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of assets
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 10 basis points increase (2009: 50 basis
points increase or decrease) is used for the management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
The decrease in sensitivity rate is due to the low level of deposit
rate maintained during the year. It is expected that the interest
rate will not decrease in the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points higher (2009: 50
basis points higher/lower) and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2010
would increase by HK$447,000 (2009: increase/decrease by
HK$5,005,000).

Foreign currency risk

Certain pledged bank deposits, bank balances, amounts due
from subsidiaries, amount due to a related company, trade and
other payables, convertible bonds (including conversion option
derivative) and other derivative financial instruments of the Group
and the Company are denominated in foreign currencies. The
Group and the Company currently do not have a formal currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will further consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

(b) 2= | B

()

AEEHBRERENERAR - K
BRITERBITINSNEZKE -
AEBTEBEAFENERR - X
EREARBMETARRESRZ
BEHD ANEBRRAKYETBE
APTET ARG KN & HEF ==
B AN ERESRATERZE
BEMEERNXE R o

TXZ@EEHH - HRIBHE
RITERZFEBRTE - ST 2
RETY BRI A RS BR 2 A 18
AEEN2ENEREE « EFH0
AEH(ZFTAE: EARTH
50182 %) T P9 {4 32 B 5 T
KZARALED - QKL TR
T3 e B 4 PO AR A A R
KT - Hi B WE BRI KK =
BAARFIETGTHR -

HEMNE EF10BEES(ZEZ 1
F: FFTRRS0EES) BFTAE
HBHgETE  AAEERE
2T ZTFE-A=Z+—HILEE
2 5% K 5 12 hn447,0008 T ( — B F
FUEE + 380, 425,005,000 7T ) ©

SN L B

AEERARBZ2ETEEMRT
R~ |ITET - KR E 2 B
B EN—EEEARRE EA
BRRREMENFIE - JHRRES
(BRESBMENTETR) REMIT
EEBMTANINEREN - AEH
RARBREBLE|ITAERNE RS
HHE - AW EEESERIIE
R ILREEEREBHPERI
R
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(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial
assets and financial liabilities denominated in currencies other
than the respective functional currencies of the relevant group

() HhwsfE B )
KEBARAATZ

EREERD R

EEREE(RSAEEEEER

RIERZDREE

BN 2 BB R

entities at the reporting date are as follows: B)MT :
The Group REME
Assets Liabilities
BE =L

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-2H5 —TTNF ZE-ZEF IZTNF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAET THET FET

Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") 7t ([T ]) 1,305 130,478 1,713,651 1,574,587

United States dollars ("USD") =7t ([Z7T]) 13,680 10 1,560 =

Renminbi (“RMB") AR (TARYK]D = — — 112
The Company AN

Assets Liabilities
BE =L

2010 2009 2010 2009

—E-BF _—TTNF =B-%BF CZTThF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FE&T FAT FE&T FAT

HKD BT 4,865,820 526,885 1,843,540 1,704,485

usD ETT 2 — — —
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(c) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (0

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in the relevant functional currencies against
the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
for the management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5% change in
foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external
receivables and payables as well as loans to foreign operations
within the Group entities where the denomination of the
receivables and payables is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit for the year where the respective
functional currencies strengthen 5% against the relevant
foreign currencies. For a 5% weakening of respective functional
currencies against the relevant currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit for the year, and the balances
below would be negative.

SN [ B (4 )

TRADAEBERZHEBENEER
SAABINE LT R T 5% 2 &
BE - BEEEMRS%HPRELL R
HOMEIE R 7 R IE A A B ETTRY
il HRESMERRE N ARITEIL
MINE BB 2 EHIER  YRNF
AR IR 5% SN TE R AE 1 5% & B i 5
BBE - GRESMEBEHINER
RARENRE  ARANEEEE
BTIBIMNEERBZER - MER
RERENFIEAETHETT 2T
REEEINZEEREM - TRZ
EBERTREIEEE L AAMINE T
1E5% B F A% 7 2 180 - %20k
ERAEBAEREZES%R Y
REFHNZZEDEEMMER -
MmIRZERTHBAR -

RMB impact HKD impact USD impact
ARBZHE i pea 2 EY a2
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

—2-%F —TINF —R-%F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR T FER

The Group K
Increase (decrease) F I
in profit for the year CRid) = 6 72,207
The Company YN
(Decrease in profit/increase (% Fim 4 k518
in loss) increase in #n) F = m
profit/decrease in =D\ =D

loss for the year — — (151,114)

“ETAF SE-BF “FINF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T FEx TEx

58,793 (519) =

58,880 = =
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(d) Other price risk (d) HAttERKRER

The Group and the Company are required to estimate the
fair values of the conversion option derivative of convertible
bonds and warrants issued by the Company at the end
of each reporting period, which therefore exposed the
Group and the Company to equity price risk. The fair value
adjustment will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in risk-free rate, the
Company'’s share price, share price volatility and foreign
currency exchange rate. Details of the convertible bonds
and warrants issued by the Company are set out in Notes
32 and 30, respectively.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to the Company’s share price, volatility
and foreign currency exchange rate at the reporting date
only as the Directors consider that the change in risk-free
rate may not have significant financial impact on the fair
values of conversion option derivative of convertible bonds
and warrants.

AEBEARARARERGHE
HRMEFAR T%%’T%
BREHF L BRBAENMETER
MRBEEFZATE TR
MEAEERAAREBRE
NiEZERRAR QRFEH
B2 (HEPEE) ERKX
BE) - ARAZKRE- KRE
WEN A KNS TER 2 IEE
HEEHE - AQEET
ARREFRRRERZ
1B 5 RIS K32 %30 °

BEE DT
TXZBEEDN - EEA
NGNS A DS E N S
R E B AT bR < BB W
EMNDEREERRER
REZETSHTRERE
HZABBMETETARR
BEZBZAFEBREEZY
FEELE .
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(d) Other price risk (Continued)

(d) HEtEERERRE &)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Changes in share price

If the share price of the Company had been 10% higher/
lower while all other input variables of the valuation
models were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
would (decrease) increase and the Company’s loss for the
year would (increase) decrease (2009: profit for the year
would (decrease) increase) as follows:

Higher by 10% EF10%
Derivative financial instruments: TESmIA:
Warrants RARIEE
Conversion option derivative AR ES 2 e
of convertible bonds PTET R
Lower by 10% WA 10%
Derivative financial instruments: TESBTHE :

Warrants e )
Conversion option derivative AR E S 2 5
of convertible bonds PTETA

HREDH (&)

EARARBRE LA THE
10%  AERXANZAEH
WEHERTE DALE
FERMZ Ofd) HBmER
REARRzFEBER(E
MBP(ZEZNEF: FE
i Mg Ot ) &) - 15 R 40
T

2010 2009
—g-8F C—TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
(898) (9,851)
(46,737) (69,322)
295 8,214

44,674 65,621
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(d) Other price risk (Continued)

(d) HEtEERERRE &)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BB E 4 (48)
Changes in volatility RIE 2 & B
If the volatility to the valuation model had been 10% EHEEXNPZEEEA
higher/lower while all other variables were held constant, TBE10% + 1 FT B E h & £
the Group’s profit would (decrease) increase and the HRTE . BIAREREZ R F
Company’s loss for the year would (increase) decrease (2009: BOCRD)EM: MAREZ
profit for the year would (decrease) increase) as follows: FEBBHGEM RD (=
TNF: FERBME R D)
EMWTE
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHExT T T
Higher by 10% EFH10%
Derivative financial instruments: TESMIT A :
Warrants R F (1,621) (7,973)
Conversion option derivative AR E S 2 5
of convertible bonds EITETA (39,641) (70,138)
Lower by 10% T FE10%
Derivative financial instruments: TESRIA:
Warrants R 366 7,373

Conversion option derivative
of convertible bonds

AR ES 2 K E
BEITAET A 39,771 73,295
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(d) Other price risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

Changes in foreign currency exchange rate

If the foreign currency exchange rate of RMB against Hong
Kong dollars had been 5% higher/lower while all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s profit would
increase (decrease) and the Company’s loss for the year
would decrease (increase) (2009: profit for the year would
increase (decrease)) as follows:

Higher by 5% EFA5%
PTHES®MIA:
AT (8 55 2 W R R

Derivative financial instruments
Conversion option derivative

of convertible bonds PTETIA
Warrants R F
Lower by 5% T F&5%

TTEEMIA :
AR E SR 2 W R B

Derivative financial instruments
Conversion option derivative

of convertible bonds PTET AR
Warrants R F

In the opinion of the Directors, the sensitivity analyses are
unrepresentative of the inherent market risk as the pricing
model used in the fair value valuation of the conversion
option derivative of convertible bonds and warrants involve
multiple variables and certain variables are inter-dependent.

(d) HEtEERERRE &)

HBE D ()

NS BB R 2 5 B

HEARB L BT ZINEE
K EF R E5%0m AT A A
BB TE AAEEZ
EREEMOR L) MARQ
Az FEBIBBR D (M)
ZZETAF  FEEFEG

MmOE))F
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
20,433 19,836
19 1,364
(20,433) (19,836)
(19) (1,364)

EEZRR BREINMIED
RERBEAEMERAR  THES
BRI ME 25 2 E HR HRRE T
ETERRBEEFZAFE
HEMAZEERAS RS
HEH METEHZEX
EE@E -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 #{ £ — & —ZF4F = H = — H IL
(e) Credit risk (e) EERM
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s and the Company’s maximum RZE-—ZTF=A=+—H X%
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the ERAATMER&AEERR
Group and the Company due to failure to discharge an obligation DR GEHFREBITRE TﬁlJRIE
by the counterparties is arising from: ZEA BYAEERAAARR
B ERK
e the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial e GREMBMKABmERARQT
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial MR RMERML - FEE
position and the Company’s statement of financial position; BREMEELEFEE : &
and
e the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial o [fIFF43FTHE - BE AR A
guarantee issued by the Company as disclosed in Note 43. B CMBERZIABE
B o
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the ABEEREEERR  AEEEE
Group is responsible for ensuring that follow-up action is taken [E & & R BR X IR #E 15 b Y [0 280 B
to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the ZER o AN REERE RS
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of each N AT & I8 8 Bl BR 3K 2 7T 4= 3R
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are B RERBEZWE 2 REEED
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors of EHMZBEEEEE Mtkms
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly RARREZEEFRAAEEZEFERAR
reduced. EHEERK -
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties nBERZEERRER  RER
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit- RGEF R REEEIEET R
rating agencies or stated-owned bank in the PRC. BITEREENRZBITHF
ZBIEIRTT o
At 31 March 2010, the Group’s concentration of credit risk i *?¢:ﬂ =+—8 ' AXx&%
is mainly on deposits paid in respect of the construction and ERZzEERBFEETREEH
operation of the polo club and theme park (Note 24). The Group’s BE R %EXA&EE% BEre
concentration of credit risk on other receivables was mainly in SRS (ME24) - REBZEAb
PRC. BYRBEERBEFEFRE -
The Company is exposed to concentration of credit risk on a few ZAN/NCIVESE S )= N ol - 31 4

subsidiaries on the amounts due from subsidiaries. BARGREZEESETRRR
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(f) Liquidity risk ) RBESERE
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with NBECRBREE 2 &EREAER
the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity BEEg MESSEALEEERR
risk management framework for the management of the Group's AREEREH PHERHAZEE K
and the Company’s short, medium and long-term funding MBESERBZEE BUREZ
and liquidity management requirements. The Group and the MEEREREIBER - REE R
Company manage liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves RAABTNHERERESES R R - £
and banking facilities. ERFHERBRRITEES -
The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s TRAFMRANEERARACHEE
remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities (including (B 45 J& - BR R B L At JiE < 5RO -
trade and other payables, the liability component of convertible AR EF BEFD - EAHE
bonds, amounts due to subsidiaries and a related company and ARAIR—HEEATREBUARLRAR
corporate guarantees) and obligations under finance leases. The ER)MBEMEGE ZAHAY
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows B - EERAEBEZER
of financial liabilities and obligations under finance leases based R RepneaBELrRENAE
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. BB RUMBIRERINE - RS
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. BHERREZEER -
The Group REME
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
interest Less than 3-6 6 months undiscounted 31.3.2010
rate 3 months  months to 1year cash flows R=—Z—FfF
MmE¥Y =@A =z NBA 1-2years 2-5years KEEBE =ZA=+-—8
Fl & BT ~MEA E2-F —E=-f =—ZHF TABE W AR E
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRX FER TER  FER  TER FRE FRE
2010 —z_mx
Trade and other payables (note) B BRR R H AL
B EE(E)  — 1,013,286 = = — 52282 1065568  1,065568
Liability component of AR AR E 5
convertible bonds ZEERD 7.5% — 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,684,711 1,897,516 1,258,588
Amount due to a related company & {5 — i 4 &
RAERE - 44,381 — — — — 44,381 44,381
Obligations under finance leases BEHEERES 6% 19 14 29 58 38 158 138

1,057,686 53,215 53,230 106,461 1,737,031 3,007,623 2,368,675
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(f) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Group (Continued)

Weighted

average
interest Less than
rate 3 months
mEFy  =M@A

kS LA
HK$'000
FHET
2009 —ETAF
Trade and other payables (note) FE R R HAb
&R (B 3E) — 455,454
Liability component of ARRES 2
convertible bonds 8 EIH 7.5% =
Amount due to a related company & {5 — i 78 12
NGIE @ — 6,542
Obligations under finance leases BEREES 6% 19
462,015

3-6
months
=F
~EA
HK$'000
FET

Note: As at 31 March 2010, advance from X &% 25/ 12 F %
AR A] Tianjin Hi-Tech Property Development Company
Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Property”), an independent third
party, in respect of construction and operation of the polo
club and theme park, is amounting to RMB160,000,000
(equivalent to HK$181,760,000) (2009: RMB136,927,000
(equivalent to HK$154,727,000) with effective interest rate
at 21% (2009: 21%). Details are disclosed in Note 28. The
remaining trade and other payables are non-interest

bearing.

The Company

Weighted

average
interest Less than
rate 3 months

MEFY =@A
F = PN
HK$°000
FH T
2010 —E-®=5
Other payables At B A 38 — 1,645
Liability component of AR ES 2
convertible bonds & EIH 7.5% —
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHFT B A R 3R IE — 129,889
Amount due to a related company & { — ] B8 i
NGIE ¢ — 44,381
Corporate guarantees R AER = 2,000

177,915

3-6
months
=z
AEA
HK$’000
FHET

53,201

()

6 months
to 1 year
~MEA
E—F
HK$'000
FHET

180,800

53,201

29
234,030

6 months
to 1 year
AMEA
E—F
HK$'000
FHET

53,201

REBEEERE &)

AEE(E)
Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 31.3.2009
cash flows RZZTZTNEF
1-2years 2-5years ABHEEE —A=+—8
—ZE-F Z—EAfF B HARE A
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FET
= = 636,254 610,182
106,403 1,791,114 2,003,919 1,142,958
_ _ 6,542 6,542
58 96 216 178
106,461 1,791,210 2,646,931 1,759,860
i R-ZFE-—ZFF=H=+—
H BUE=FXEEESE
HhE B % B R 2 m] ([ KEE
TEME]) HRERREES
B REBNEERZFH
A R #160,000,000 7t ( 16 %
7 181,760000;8 7T ) (= FZF
N E - A R #136,927,000 T
(#5E 1 154,727,000 7T ) -
BEERFE21%(=ZFEN
F:21%)5 8 FHFIE
BRI aE28 o 82 T JET R A
RE M fEN B I ARG E o
AT
Carrying
Total amount at
undiscounted 31.3.2010
cash flows R-—Z—FfF
1-2years 2-5years FKREREE =ZA=+-—H
—B=-H ZFEHHE RBHE HEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FERT FER FER
— — 1,645 1,645
106,403 1,684,711 1,897,516 1,258,588
— — 129,889 129,889
_ — 44,381 44,381
— — 2,000 —
106,403 1,684,711 2,075,431 1,434,503
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e . ) 325 = .
(f) Liquidity risk (continued) f RBELERE @)
The Company (Continued) ANTF(E)
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
interest Less than 3-6 6 months undiscounted 31.3.2009
rate 3 months months  to 1 year cash flows RZZTZTNEF
mEFy  =M@A == ANEA  1-2years 2-5years  AKEHEESE —A=+—8
kS AR ~MEA E—F —E-fF —ZERF ik oX:) KAREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
2009 —ZETAE
Other payables Hih 58 — 1,102 — — — — 1,102 1,102
Liability component of ARk ES 2
convertible bonds A E G 7.5% = 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,791,114 2,003,919 1,142,958
Amount due to a subsidiary FE < — R B BB
YNGIE/¢) = 129,898 = = — — 129,898 129,898
Amount due to a related company & < — [ B8 i
NCIE S — 6,542 — — — — 6,542 6,542
137,542 53,201 53,201 106,403 1,791,114 2,141,461 1,280,500
Note: Liquidity risk analysis excludes conversion option derivative Mt - mE A& EE S ITT G
of convertible bonds and warrants which do not involve FREGHEEARRESFZ
cash settlements. BRI DT T A RGRIR 1

27
iz °
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(9) Fair values of financial instruments (9 TRIEZAYE
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are SREENERABZATEETE
determined as follows: FIEMT ¢

o the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding of conversion option derivative of convertible
bonds and other derivative financial instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
or rates from current market transactions as input.

o the fair values of conversion option derivative of convertible
bonds and other derivative financial instruments are
determined using option pricing model. Where such prices
are not available, use is made of discounted cash flow
analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of
the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

TREELSREE(TERE
AR ESF 2 BT A
TAREMITEZRIA)Z
REETIARRBARES R
REEZAREBEASLR
EMERXHEBRIEXRER
 ABUE ©

AHBEESZ e RETE
TARHEMITESMIAZ
REEDAREEERAE
EoMARBEMSEBEE "
PN AT A2 AFER
RAFZRERESI T AT
EFEHMERzkaEmEm
Bx MBAETETAZA
FEDEABEEEREAM

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial BEERR HEMBmRPIREHE
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised costs in KAEz2eMEERERARZ
the consolidated financial statements approximate to their FHEREAEZAZATERS -

corresponding fair values.
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(g) Fair values of financial instruments (Continued) (9 EMIAREZAFHEE

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TRIEBHZRDFEEY S HRER

that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, EZERMIEZHN  BAFEZ

grouped into Level 3 based on the degree to which the fair value BRMAEEEIERE=R -

is observable.

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from . FE=ZRATFEFETDERE
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or AN FEAR 15 A 81 5% 7 45 BUR
liability that are not based on observable market data (BEXZER 2B ARIE) G
(unobservable inputs). CEESAER ARE M

BHERBE -
The Group AEE

Level 3
B=H
2010
—E-2F
HK$'000
FHET

Financial liabilities cRAE
Conversion option derivative of convertible bonds AHBRERF HGRETET A 408,659
Other derivative financial instruments — warrants HEmiTEem T A —RIRER 378

Total BEt 409,037
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(9) Fair values of financial instruments (Continued) (9 EMIREZAFHEE
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of THEBZE=RAFETELHE

financial liabilities

Other Conversion

derivative option

financial derivative of

instruments — convertible

warrants bonds

HisT4£ iR ES

SRITAR— Z R

R EE fTETA

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

At 1 April 2009 RZZEZNFHA—H 27,270 396,715
Gains or losses recognised in MR T3IEB R WSk EE

— profit or loss —BHx (26,892) 9,838

— other comprehensive income —HtexmikE = 2,106

At 31 March 2010 RZE—TF=A=+—H 378 408,659
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The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with effect
from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that requires
operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker for the purpose of allocating resources to
segments and assessing their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”) required an entity to identify
two sets of segments (business and geographical) using a risks and
returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting format was
business segments by location of assets. The application of HKFRS 8
has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments
as compared with the primary reportable segments determined in
accordance with HKAS 14. Nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed
the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss.

In prior years, segment information reported externally was analysed
on the basis of the operation of the Group’s businesses, including
property investment and property development. For the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment, information reported
to the chief operating decision maker, Chairman of the Company,
specifically focuses on the performance of property investment,
property development and hotel and polo club operation. The hotel and
polo club operation is new operation in the current year, which is still
under development as at 31 March 2010. The Group’s operating and
reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

1. Property investment
2. Property development
3 Hotel and polo club operation

Information regarding the above segments is reported below.
The Group was also involved in the development and sales of digital

consumer products. That operation was discontinued during the year
ended 31 March 2009 (see Note 14).

AEBA-STNFNA—BREREMRS
BB REENESF[EED L] - FE
MR E R ES AT AR - ZER|
EREREEN T THAEEREEL
BREERTHIHEIEER R HE
BEMERARScARRERKAERE D
DEHEE R REZER(EHE
FTEER|E 1455 [ bR ) AR E E BB
PR & B3] 7558 o M4 5 30 (A
HE) BEAFEsFERERA AR
BEMECEB S - EREEY KW
EEAFESFERLCIRARBGELE
MEEENEBZARESHAER - W&
BYAEBETAIRED I - RAEB
MR EERESR N ELERTELBR
B EEGREE -

RBEFE  MIREZDHBERTIR
BASBREZEBRIN  BREME
REMDEERR -RERDENRKBAFN
mmsE MEEBKLERKE (ARAFE
F)BRENERBHETNYERE - ¥
ERRE ANBEERSHREEBK 2RI -
BERERGEEBR/AEESFEMNK
EMIER BE_ZT-—ZTF=F=1+—
BlnESEEES - RETEWHR
EEAESH  AKREZEBRAIRED
R

1. MERE
2. MERER
3. BERBHEXH

BRNLEDHOERREWT -

ANEE I E M= HIE N S E R &
EZER - ZEBECREBE-_ZTTNF
ZA=t+—BZ2EERRIL (GLHEKE
14) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # %% —

Segment revenues and results

—RAEZH = —HIREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by

reportable segment:

Revenue
Segment (loss) profit

Interest income

Unallocated corporate expenses

Finance costs

Gains on conversion option
derivative of convertible bonds
and other derivative
financial instruments

Profit before taxation

s
2 88 (&5 18) 4 7l

P2 BA
ANERARERA
MisEM
AR E S i
HETETAR
Hip TSR
TAZ W

FR B A A1)

TEW R KR FEE

AEBZEERFERATRE

LI

Hotel and polo club

Property development Property investment operation
MERE MERE BEREREEL
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-BF —_TTNF —B-BF —_TTNF —B-TF —_TThF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET FERT FERT FERT FERT
(4,546) (1,189) 1,690,769 (488,857) (1,002) —

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same
as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from each segment
without allocation of central administration costs, directors’ salaries,

interest income, finance costs, gains on conversion option derivative
of convertible bonds and other derivative financial instruments and
taxation (charge) credit. This is the measure reported to the Group’s
Chief Executive Officer for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

Total
At
2010 2009
—E-TF —TThHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FET
1,685,221 (490,046)
5,988 32,136
(86,201)  (226,534)
(248,261)  (209,814)
17,054 980,937
1,373,801 86,679

ARG D R & At R BM 3 2 A

SE R HBRE B

EFxHe - MEBA
RESH A

DEHE T BB
BES W2 HEH,EE

PRITHER -
MBER Ak

MEETE T AREMITAE

ERMTAEZRSERHRE(IH) BER2RE
DEER - WDHAAKETHEAHZR
MHEBRDBE R KRBT ZEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F

THEEREE

AEBZEERABRARSE
LI

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by Bali )i

reportable segment:

Hotel and polo club

Property development Property investment operation Total
MERE MERE BEREREEL At
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-BF —_TTNF —B-BF —TTNF —B-BF —_TTAF —B-BF _TTIHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FET FERT FERT FERT FERT FERT FET
Segment Assets PBEE
Segment assets DEEE 2,199,572 1,939,115 6,104,739 3,893,269 675,363 — 8,979,674 5,832,334
Unallocated corporate assets RAOBRABEBE 650,442 1,794,158
9,630,116 7,626,542
Segment Liabilities SWEE
Segment liabilities DEBEfE (76,248) (222,290) (718,166) (671,429) (533,105) —  (1,327,519) (893,719)
Unallocated corporate liabilities ADBEARAE (2,505,001) (1,909,193)
(3,832,520) (2,802,912)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and allocating REZDBERERSEBRTEDE :

resources between segments:

fﬁ?$‘il,ﬁ%ﬁ52"ﬁ>§§ - EBVA
E - U EE A - EHEIRER
ﬁﬁm&fﬁﬂ ﬁ&iﬁfﬁﬁ\\ gl
BECHRETHREDH - ATRE

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than the
Group head office’s corporate assets, intangible assets, amounts
due from related companies, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash. Assets used jointly by reportable segments are

allocated on the basis of the estimated gross floor areas as to be AHHERCEA 2 EERERN RS
constructed by individual reportable segments; and SEHEEE A EEEES A
&
. all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than o BRAREEEB A AREE  BN—

the Group head office’s corporate liabilities, amount due to a MEAEARIIE  EAIE  E
related company, taxation payable, obligations under finance HERL HKREF(BELR
leases, convertible bonds (including conversion option derivative), HETETAR) EMfTASmT
other derivative financial instruments and deferred tax liabilities. E&LL@% Ha@EIN B AER
Liabilities for which reportable segments are jointly liable are SEFAIHREDE o ATHRE 9 FH
allocated in proportion to segment assets. FAEMNEEZRS FEELHHE

=
R
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Other segment information

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or loss or segment

assets:

Additions to property,
plant and equipment
Additions to prepaid
lease payments
Additions to prepaid
lease payments included
in properties under
development for sale
Release of prepaid
lease payments
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
(Gain) loss on disposal of
property, plant and
equipment
Share-based payments
expenses, net

REME -
5 K%t
EARTENHEE
R
BERPHE
FZER P
ZENEE
HIA
AENEERE
i
RENE
HEME - BE
REEZ
(Yak) B 18
SABR D R BB
NRZERA
FE

Property development

nERE
2010 2009
—s-%5 —TTAS
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER  FAL
505 626

— 1,005,367

218 231

E'I_
>
P
o
9
=
D
Bk
gg_

N

Hotel and polo club

Property investment operation

MEERE EERSHREXE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—¥-%F —TTLF —B-¥F —ITTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET
1,178 74,147 319,058 =
— 1,048,887 165,470 =
— 13,187 — —
510 394 4 —

Unallocated
KA E

2010 2009
—®-2F —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
977 1,504
1,623 1,854
3) 69
19,362 —

D EREETRFIR

Total

st
2010 2009
—2-2E —TTAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
321,718 76,277
165,470 1,048,887
— 1,005,367
— 13,187
2,355 2,479
3) 69

19,362
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F

Geographical information i & & R}

The Group’s continuing operations in property development, property ANEBYEER WERERBER GRS E
investment and hotel and polo club operation are principally located in 2 IFELEXEBEEZMNFE - TEFES o
the PRC, excluding Hong Kong.

There was no revenue derived from the continuing operations during REBZE T —ZFR -TTAF=A=+—H
the years ended 31 March 2010 and 2009. IEFE FELEEBITAREEARE -

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of non-current WA TRFRDEEFEEAERABENE  BER
assets, and additions to property, plant and equipments analysed by the ~ REREEREMIRETZ DT -
geographical area in which the assets are located:

Carrying amounts of Additions to property,

non-current assets plant and equipment

FRBEERTE REVE BERZHE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF C"TENF ZB-BF "TITAF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FERT FHET
Hong Kong aBH 2,448 3,075 972 2,281
Other regions in the PRC A B th b [ 6,248,510 3,701,277 320,746 76,413
Others Hih — — — 16
6,250,958 3,704,352 321,718 78,710

Other income for the year includes the following: FARAZHMBABTEATEIA :
2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Continuing operations HEREXER

Interest received on bank deposits IRITEHWERZF B 5,988 32,136
Others HAb 790 144

6,778 32,280
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £
(i) Details of Directors’ remuneration are as () E=MEFHBUOT
follows:
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2009: ENZENERZ(ZZETNAEF: £
seven) Directors were as follows: ZIEEEBRZMemT
Other emoluments
Hip &
Discretionary Share-
Salaries and based
and other performance Pension payments Total
Fees benefits related bonus costs expenses emoluments
LR 13 %
FER MERRE HBEMAR
HunE HiiE R HETEAL R A &R MeEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR FERT FERT FERT FET
Mr. Pan Sutong (“Mr. Pan”) & &R @ 5L 4
(M&EEED — 22,500 — 12 — 22,512
Professor Huang Xiaojian BEEZEHIR — 1,230 — — 512 1,742
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence RERLE 410 — — — — 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen REXEL 341 — — — — 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai, Sunny %57 i 8 + 273 — — — — 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, TEREE
Edmond — 3,030 — 12 1,708 4,750
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun ABEELE = 1,470 = 10 854 2,334
Total for 2010 T -TFRE 1,024 28,230 — 34 3,074 32,362
Other emoluments
Hith B &
Discretionary
Salaries and Share-based
and other  performance payments Total
Fees benefits  related bonus Pension costs expenses  emoluments
LARZ 19 %
Fek BBERRHR B AR
e H A8 Fl B TEAT RIRA AR ZEH [ EC
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET FET FHET
Mr. Pan EEAE = 22,500 = 12 — 22,512
Professor Huang Xiaojian EEERYR — 1,200 — — — 1,200
Mr. Lai Chi Kin, Lawrence REBRLE 410 — — — 410
Dr. Ng Lai Man, Carmen SEXEL 341 — — — — 341
Dr. Cheung Kwan Wai, Sunny %57 i & + 273 — — — — 273
Mr. Ting Kwang Yuan, TRERAEE
Edmond — 1,387 — 6 1,393
Mr. Zhou Xiaojun FBEELE — 1,440 — — — 1,440

Total for 2009 —ETNFRE 1,024 26,527 — 18 — 27,569
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F
(i) Employees’ remuneration: (i) EEMS :
Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group, two (2009: EREELEERFHALF  WE
three) are the Directors of the Company whose emoluments are (ZEENF: =F)RARAIZE
disclosed above. The emoluments of the remaining three (2009: FOFEEIZHER EXHE - % T
two) are employees of the Group, details of whose remuneration REB=%(ZTTNF: ME)E
are as follows: BrBMemFEwT
2010 2009
—E-FfF —TThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e ZEIREMET] 5,069 3,240
Pension costs RIRE AR 36 24
5,105 3,264
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BEZMEeNFTHEE :
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTThF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T & 1,500,000 7& 7T — 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T & 2,000,000 7 7T 3 1
3 2
During both years, no remuneration was paid by the Group to RREARN - AEETEXAHE T
the Directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals RARRAEEFHAEEREES TR
of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group BYERMARE B KRS AR
or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors of the SEZREHIERBEBRZEE - RN
Company has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during MENNEARARNAREENENRE

both years. MEERNE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest on: THEEZFE
— Finance leases —mMERE
— Other borrowings wholly —HRAFABHEEZ
repayable within five years H &%
Effective interest expense on AR ES 2
convertible bonds BERF ERAX
Continuing operations BEREXER

Fair value change on share options granted WERIZ T HEh R EE ZBRE Y
to other participants prior to ANFEZE (M)
Surrender (note)

Gain on derecognition of share options RERREUYEREREM
upon Surrender (note) B R W e (P EE)

Fair value change on conversion option AMRES AMBETETAZ
derivative of convertible bonds (Note 31) A FE(E &k (HizE31)

Fair value change on other derivative HtfTEemT A AFEZL
financial instruments (Note 32) (FF5E32)

2010

S i
HK$'000
FHT

(17)

(26,212)

(222,032)
(248,261)

2010
—B-FfF
HK$'000
TERx

(9,838)

26,892
17,054

2009
—EThF
HK$'000
FHET

31

(7,827)

(201,956)
(209,814)

2009
—ZETNF
HK$'000
F# T

206,127

57,184

424,960

292,666
980,937
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ —~ % —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F

Note:

On 24 November 2008, deeds of surrender of outstanding share
options were received from the grantees in relation to the surrendering
all rights of the share options granted to them for the subscription of a
total of 64,000,000 shares in the Company (the “Surrender”). Prior to
the Surrender, a fair value gain on such share options of
HK$206,127,000 was recognised as gain on other derivative financial
instruments in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
that year.

The fair values of those share options were amounting to
HK$67,774,000 as of the date prior to the Surrender. Included in the
share options surrendered were 10,000,000 share options granted to
an existing shareholder of the Company on the date prior to the
Surrender, the fair values of these share options on the date prior to the
Surrender of HK$10,590,000 were recognised as a contribution from
equity participants in equity participants reserves. The fair values of the
remaining 54,000,000 shares options surrendered on the date prior to
the Surrender, amounting to HK$57,184,000 were credited as gain on
other derivative financial instruments in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2009.

There was no additional share options granted to potential investors by
the Company during each of the years ended 31 March 2010 and 31
March 2009.

e

RZFEFENF+—HA=ZF+H EKEA
AN ERERBRIZEUZELR LA H
64,000,000/2 8 17 = 2 561 F| 5 ] 1 Z
TIEBRBEZRZE([HE]) - ZEBER
BERKZFE i .2 2~ F 1B 4 25 5206,127,000
BT ERZFRESDEK S HEA
BREEMITELH T AZ Yz -

BEKZH AL ZEZBRIEZLNF
1B %67,774,000 7 7T ° B i Z B R 1#E
1000000017 #8 fZ ## E R ZE B2 H B 1%
FARA—ZHEAEREF  RHKEHZH
Bz SR .2 2N F(E10,590,000% T 2
R RN (5 15 57 B A 2 81N
#3 o RIKZE .2 H B H £ 54,000,000 17
BTl E R 1EZ 2N F(E57,184,000,8 7T E
FABE—FTFEANF=ZHA=1+—HIF
EBZHEESEKZREFIELERAMITE
T TAZ WKz -

ARARBE-F—EF=A=+—H
R-FEAF=A=+—ALFEERE
S 1 1R S B
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ — % —ZF=H =+ —H L4 EZ
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Continuing operations RS
Profit before taxation has been arrived B B AT A E 30 Bk
at after charging (crediting): (FEA) AT &IE -
Release of prepaid lease payments A& RIEE
(included in administrative expenses) (BBBETHREAN) — 13,187
Auditors’ remuneration % ELRD B & 3,392 2,998
Depreciation of property, mE - WE
plant and equipment RERENE 2,355 2,479
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEYE BERREZ
plant and equipment (&) Eia (3) 69
Operating lease rentals in respects of HEMEZKELHERS
rented premises 16,823 20,683
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) B TR AN (BHEZEEME)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e - JEAL RIERL 59,566 50,777
Retirement benefits cost (Note 40) RIKAEFIBCA (B 5E40) 2,201 1,028
Share-based payments expenses, net AR AERN R BERFE 19,362 —

81,129 51,805
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 #{ £ — % —ZHF£=H =+ —H L4 EZ
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Continuing operations HEREER
The taxation (charge) credit comprises: FME(ZE) KesE :
PRC Enterprise Income Tax PRI EMEH
— Current year — REE (19,109) (1,982)
Deferred taxation (Note 33) IEERTE (M5E33) (425,085) 118,368
Taxation (charge) credit for the year FEHE(ZH)ER (444,194) 116,386

No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided as there was no assessable
profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

B 8] F 2 30 4 FE AR s A - U AR
FEMEH -

RETBECERBSRE(EERER
EDRECEMRBHEAERES B =F
ZENE-A-HERTEEANE QA
ZERAEBHRMER25% -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The taxation (charge) credit for the year can be reconciled to the profit FEHE(ZIH)BEAEgE 2 HE s
before taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive iﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁUiﬁnﬂﬂﬂEﬁﬂT :
income as follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Profit before taxation from BELEEKZ
continuing operations & %5 B 1,373,801 86,679
Taxation charge at the domestic BARHFTISTRE25% (ZEZTNF :
income tax rate of 25% (2009: 25%) 25%) At E Z BIA (343,450) (21,670)
Tax effect of income not taxable ARG S BARDIMAZ
for tax purpose MG 15,259 245,500
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR T E DSR2 2
for tax purpose MG 2 (93,777) (106,043)
Tax effect of intragroup profits EBRNENZRIGTE (21,279) —
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised W R 2 BB EE 2
R & (2,283) (8,468)
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) AATAIRTER
not recognised MIAEE 3,250 7,524
Effect of different tax rates of EHMADEE R EEZWE AT
subsidiaries operating in other METRzZFE
jurisdictions = 2,761
Others Hh (1,914) (3,218)
Taxation (charge) credit for the year BERLEEKEEHREBE(XH)EKR
relating to continuing operations (444,194) 116,386
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H [L4F

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group had entered into the
following sale and purchase agreements in respect of disposal of the
entire interest of certain subsidiaries of the Company, which principally
engaged in the operation of development and sales of digital consumer
products:

(i) On 10 June 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with
Grace Dragon International Holdings Limited (“Grace Dragon”) to
dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly owned subsidiary,
Matsunichi Digital Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
("Digital Technology (Shenzhen)”) for a cash consideration of
RMB100,069,000 (equivalent to HK$113,419,000). Mr. Pan, a
Director of the Company, has beneficial interest in Grace Dragon.
The disposal was completed during the year ended 31 March
2009 upon the control of Digital Technology (Shenzhen) was
passed to the acquirer.

(i) On 25 August 2008, a sale and purchase agreement was
entered into with an independent third party to dispose of
the entire issued share capital of Best Concord Group Limited
(“Best Concord”) and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Matsunichi
Information Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited (collectively
referred as “Best Concord Group”) at a consideration of
HK$717,303,000. The disposal was completed during the year
ended 31 March 2009 upon the control of Best Concord Group
was passed to the acquirer.

(i) On 15 January 2009, the Company entered into three sale and
purchase agreements with Matsunichi Global Investment Limited
("Matsunichi Global”) whereby the Company had agreed to
dispose of and Matsunichi Global had agreed to acquire:

(@)  the entire issued and paid-up capital of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Ocean Talent Limited (“Ocean
Talent”) and the assignment of loan of HK$216,257,000
for a consideration of HK$162,694,000. The disposal was
completed during the year ended 31 March 2009 upon the
control of Ocean Talent was passed to the acquirer.

REBEE_ZETNF=ZA=1+—HILFE -
REBERELERRAETHEAR Z
EHESFLTINEERSE  ZFHE
RATERERTHEHEERMEREE
ES

0 RZTEZENFRA+H KX2QF
EH Grace Dragon International Holdings
Limited ([ Grace Dragon |) ] S 173 -
LA & — A 2 & [ff /& 2 8]Matsunichi
Digital Technology (Shenzhen)
Company Limited ([ Digital Technology
(Shenzhen) ) By &= £ j 1 - IR & R
8 A A K %100,069,000 7T (18 & 7
113419000 7T) - " ARIEF &L
4 7 Grace Dragonh # 5 B 25 25 ©
& Digital Technology (Shenzhen) 2 #% %l
REZEL% ZELEREEC
ZENF=ZA=1T—RHIEFETK °

iy HRZZEENFENAZ+HAB X
RIE—RBIYE=ZHE—H
B & % - A I HBest Concord
Group Limited ([ Best Concord |) . £
2 & Kf B A & Matsunichi Information
Technology (Shenzhen) Company Limited
( 45 %8 [Best Concord2 E |) 2 & &
BETIRA - KRB /717,303,000 %
JT ° ‘& Best Concord £ [E ~ 122 | & 2
REFE ZEBELHERBE_ZZE

NEZA=Z+—RBIFETMK °

I

(i RNZZTEZENFE—A+HB AQF
E3 Matsunichi Global Investment Limited
(I'Matsunichi Global |) 3] 32 = 5 B
Emz BUARRRELEMm
Matsunichi Global Rl Z & & :

@ A2FZ2EMNB 2R AF Ocean
Talent Limited ([ Ocean Talent |)
ZEHEBRITRBERA
LA K 8878 75 [ B 5£216,257,000
Bt 0 R B A162,694,000 7
JT ° % Ocean Talentz 2 % #
BRXEHE  ZEDERNE
E-_ZTTHhAhF=A=+—8H
IEFERERK °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

(iii)y  (Continued)

(b)

the entire paid-up capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Matsunichi Digital Technology Limited
("Digital Technology”) and the assignment of loan of
HK$11,726,000 for a consideration of HK$1. The disposal
was completed during the year ended 31 March 2009
upon the control of Digital Technology was passed to the
acquirer.

the entire issued and paid-up capital of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, Matsunichi Technology
(Singapore) Pte. Limited (“Technology (Singapore)”) and
the assignment of loan of HK$758,000 for a consideration
of HK$509,000. The disposal was completed during the
year ended 31 March 2009 upon the control of Technology
(Singapore) was passed to the acquirer.

Matsunichi Global is wholly and beneficially owned by a Director, Mr.

Pan.

The profit for the year from discontinued operations is analysed as

follows:

iy (#8)

() AREEENIE QT Matsunichi
Digital Technology Limited
(IDigital Technology 1) 2 & #
BERA AREEE@AE
11,726,000 % 7T - KB &K
17 Jt ° & Digital Technology 2
THIEERE & ZBELE
REZE_ZZNF=A=+—
HIEFREZX -

© AnrEZ2EME 2 7 Matsunichi
Technology (Singapore)
Pte. Limited ([ Technology
(Singapore)]) 2 &2 #H B 1T K&
BERAARERZRAFBAER
758,000 7T » X & £3509,000
7 7T ° & Technology (Singapore)
ZERIEBRE %R %ALY
ERBE_ZZNF=A=+
—HIEFEREX -

Matsunichi Global HE F &L E 2 E B
A o

KB BRI LT 2 FE Ao il
™~

Profit of development and sales of
digital consumer products operation
for the year

Gain on disposal of development and
sales of digital consumer products
operation (Note 38)

FEBBHEERMAER
#HE X H 25 R

HEBFEBEEMMAER
HHE R 2 Wt (PHEE38)

2010 2009
—g-2F —TThA
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FBT FET

= 205,037

= 322,191

— 527,228
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F

An analysis of the results and cash flows of the discontinued
operations, which have been included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement of cash flows

was as follows:

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Gains on other derivative financial instruments

Profit before taxation
Taxation charge

Profit for the year from discontinued operations

Profit for the year from discontinued operations
has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Interest received on bank deposits
Interest on bank borrowings
wholly repayable within five years
Fair value change on foreign
currency forward contracts
Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of sales comprises:
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses
Allowance of inventories
Amortisation of trade marks
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Foreign exchange gain, net
Operating lease rentals in respect of
rented premises
Research and development costs expensed
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
Salaries, bonuses and allowances
Retirement benefit cost

o 3

HERAR

E7

H A

$HE MDA
THE R

BN
HthfTA S BT A2 et

B 7% A1 g A
BIA

RECRUERERB 2 FRETN —

A B

EXB L FE

ERERGEEEAREBRERGEEGRS
MERRIERIELEERXERA S
MEDWWT :

ERUIEEEER 2FERA

2010
—E-%%

2009
—EENF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F#EIT
— 3,107,538

— (2,722,060)

= 385,478
= 58,477
= (39,032)
— (49,294)
— (145,751)
— 47,512

= 257,390
= (52,353)

205,037

w2 GEA) AT &IE -

BITFERWEZ A E
/,\EAﬁiﬁﬂ%%UE}&Z

IRITHERF B
9\\[5_,3)1/\%’]2 NS

T B B &
HERARIE
BRRAXZEERA
FEREE
PR 2 # 55
VN
SN Ul 25 7% B
HEMEZREHERS

wBiTE

BB A2
BIRA(BREFHE)
& TEARORRL

R ARAEFI XA

No charge arose on gain on discontinuance of the operations.

— (37,354)
= 145,751

— (47,512)
— 588

= 2,691,796
= 18,313
= 11,951
= 8,344
= (3,193)

= 2,882
= 3,862

— 12,697
— 162

RIPEB 2 W T EAEARX -
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Cash flows from discontinued operations

Net cash from operating activities R EETBIRES FE
Net cash from investing activities KWEEHFABRE/FHE
Net cash used in financing activities MEERHTAR S FE
Net decrease in cash flows REeERERD FHE

The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the discontinued
operations at the dates of disposals are disclosed in Note 38.

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Directors of the Company for
both years, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end of the
reporting period.

5
I+

—s-%%
HK$'000
FHT

ERLEEEXEB2HER

2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHAIT
565,276
307,886
(2,424,941)

(1,551,779)

ERIEREZXEBRELERRZEES
BEREENHME38PRKE -

AR A EE R SOE 3K A R E F
B2BE  B8|EHRARINEZZIK

BEMRE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F

HESCENRCRIEREER

ARAHEEABREERERNREERTN
TRBETHERGE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Earnings E
Profit for the purpose of basic earnings RARAEGREREN Z &
per share (profit for the year attributable ~ (ZR 2 T B A FEAE EE % F)
to owners of the Company) 929,607 730,293
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: /& 7£ 58 EiBA% 2 2 £ -
Fair value change on conversion option AMRELF A MEBAETETIA
derivative of convertible bonds NEEEH 9,838 (424,960)
Interest on convertible bonds R EAS ZF A 222,032 201,956
Exchange gain in relation to liability HEEERETREESEE
component of convertible bonds 210 A Bl 2 [ K Uz
recognised in profit or loss (6,069) (38,442)
Profit for the purpose of diluted AR EEREE &2 T 2 % F
earnings per share 1,155,408 468,847
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
Number of Number of
shares shares
Ko HE R 8 H
Number of shares R ER
Weighted average number of ARFTESRERBF 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T 38 AR N S 1 Er
basic earnings per share 1,222,694,074 1,222,580,034
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares & 7£ 1 5% ¥ 3@ ik 7 5/ 2
— Share options — BBk 3,519,483 4,315,192
— Convertible bonds — Al ES 405,344,073 347,721,631
Weighted average number of ARETEER#EERT 2
ordinary shares for the purpose of T A pNHE 5
diluted earnings per share 1,631,557,630 1,574,616,857



GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B 205 e o i ik

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

From continuing and discontinued operations
(Continued)

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding warrants and certain share
options as the exercise price was higher than the average market price
per share for both years.

FEACERCRLEERR
(%)
mMRTEEERZMENSRRE 2 F
P90 E - # AT R B R B 3 4% R
ROTEAAAZRTERREERET
HEAR 1 -

From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

Earnings figures are calculated as follows:

Profit for the year attributable to owners
of the Company

Less: profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Profit for the purpose of basic earnings
per share from continuing operations
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Fair value change on conversion
option derivative of convertible bonds
Interest on convertible bonds
Exchange gain in relation to liability
component of convertible
bonds recognised in profit or loss

Profit (loss) for the purpose of diluted
earnings per share from continuing
operations

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for both

basic and diluted earnings per share.

HEREER

ARBAFEBEAREFEREEBERE
AREERFTRBETIHNENSE

BNBFIREBETIEMGE

RRBHER NEIEFEEN

B REERIERERBZFE G

AR EFBECLEEBER
EABNZ 5 A

BEBEEBRZTE

AR E S 2 W R B
TETREZ RV EEZS

AR E S 2 F R

T 18 o5 e R B AT R AR B 55
BED AR EN W

ARFERERLEEBER
BERN 28N (EE)

2010 2009
—2-B5 _—TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi8 T
929,607 730,293
= (527,228)
929,607 203,065
9,838 (424,960)
222,032 201,956
(6,069) (38,442)
1,155,408 (58,381)

FFTE A& AR -

FiERzrBREEASRERNLEER
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F
From discontinued operations ERIEREER

HE-ZTETNLF=ZA=+—HLHF
B BEBEERLELEEBZ2FERT
527228000 T Kk EXFM ARG ES
BREAREERAN2HE  BRIEKSE
%%z&%%$%ﬂ%§kwm%Mv

For the year ended 31 March 2009, basic earnings per share for the
discontinued operations was 43.12 HK cents per share and diluted
earnings per share for the discontinued operations was 33.48 HK
cents per share, based on the profit for the year from the discontinued
operations of HK$527,228,000 and the denominators detailed above

for both basic and diluted earnings per share.

ERIEEREEB 2 ERBERNNES
Hx33.48;’§1m o

Properties Furniture,
under Construction  Plant and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
Buildings development in progress machinery improvements equipment vehicles Total
BRESP HeR HEWX BRH -
f: 2 L/ES ERIRE ES] #15 BHERRE RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(note b)
(Fff b))
The Group AEH
AT COST &N
At 1 April 2008 RZETNF
mA—R 82,126 = = 97,541 4,329 7,398 5,254 196,648
Exchange realignment & X # 1,058 — — 4,178 48 250 118 5,652
Additions #n = 73,083 = 1,611 777 1,644 1,595 78,710
Disposals He — — — — — — (489) (489)
Disposals of subsidiaries & @A 7 (83,184) — — (102,645) (94) (4,627) (3,213) (193,763)
At 31 March 2009
= 73,083 _— 685 5,060 4,665 3,265 86,758
Transfer (note a) ?ﬁ}ﬁ (Kisxa) — (1,160) 1,160 — — — — —
Exchange realignment [ 35 — — 6 4 7 17 6 40
Additions A0 — — 318,937 — — 1,686 1,095 321,718
Reclassified to investment  E# 9 fE AR E
properties (Note 18) 3% (F=E18) — (71,923) — — — — — (71,923)
Disposals He — — — — — (278) — (278)
At 31 March 2010 F:Efzﬁ
=A=+— — — 320,103 689 5,067 6,090 4,366 336,315
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2008 RZZBENF
MmA—A 5,994 = = 43,883 1,775 6,429 2,527 60,608
Exchange realignment fEE 3 = 220 — — 1,662 16 126 41 2,065
Provided for the year FEF R 1,090 — — 6,174 1,608 1,273 678 10,823
Eliminated on disposals & B 4 84 — — — — — — (285) (285)
Disposals of subsidiaries & ff{ /& 2 & (7,304) = — (51,034) (468) (5,328) (1,471) (65,605)
At 31 March 2009 RZZEThF
— — — 685 2,931 2,500 1,490 7,606
Exchange realignment FE 5, 3B — — — 4 2 13 1 20
Provided for the year FEEEE — — — — 1,133 745 477 2,355
Eliminated on disposals H e R 8 — — — — — (273) — (273)
At 31 March 2010 i
— — — 689 4,066 2,985 1,968 9,708
CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 March 2010
— — 320,103 — 1,001 3,105 2,398 326,607
At 31 March 2009
— 73,083 — — 2,129 2,165 1,775 79,152
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The buildings were located on land held under medium-term lease and
were located in the PRC.

The carrying amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment of the
Group in respect of assets held under finance leases was HK$55,000
(2009: HK$129,000).

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
properties under development and construction in progress, are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Buildings

Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures

Over the estimated useful life of 20 years,
or the unexpired term of the relevant
lease, whichever is shorter

10%—-20%

Over the estimated useful life of 5 years or
the unexpired term of the relevant lease,
whichever is shorter

20%-33%%

and equipment

Motor vehicles 20%
Note:
(@) Amount represented the construction costs incurred for the

(b)

construction of the polo club and theme park which was
transferred from properties under development to construction in
progress during the year ended 31 March 2010.

As at 31 March 2010, included in the Group’s construction in
progress of HK$258,223,000 (2009: Nil) was the property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction for hotel properties.
The remaining balance of HK$61,880,000 (2009: Nil) represented
the construction costs incurred by the Group for the construction
of polo club and theme park. Details of construction and
operation of the polo club and theme park are set out in Note
24(b).

ZEBTFURNATHEERAF L0 L
WA E o

AEBEZTUAREHEERE KM &
B NBEMZEEEAS500EBT(ZEF
FLEE 129,000 7T ) °

LR BERTFOEREZTRINZIE
BE R RETIABAEE T FRIFTE -

EF Z+F AT AF K
HMEREBEEERA
(A HE A %)

HEE R & 10%-20%

FEMERE AFZETABFEHK
HERB EEERA
(ARG HEBE)

BFEL - ZEER 20%-335%

B
AE 20%
W&t -

@ LEBEATHEREIENEME
LEZRERE  ZHEREEZ-F
—EF-H =+ HIFEHERE
Y EEEFREETRE -

b R-CE—ZFFZH=+—H BEF
7E 7N 5 B 7F 7 T 2 /P #9258,223,000
BIL(ZFEFNF : ) BREBEBL
NEBIEPZYE  BERKE -
£F T61,880000& T ( —FEZ/NF :
E)BAEEGEET KSR FE
RETEECEBERE - FHKER
FTERNEZEBEREEFEHRY
it 24(b) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F
HK$'000
FHET
At 1 April 2008 R-ZEENFEOH—H 2,790,400
Exchange realignment [E 5 5% 102,400
Decrease in fair value recognised in profit or loss REmERZ A FEERD (473,470)
At 31 March 2009 RZZEBAF=A=+—H 2,419,330
Exchange realignment bE i & 19,631
Construction cost incurred FFrEE H 2 A A AR 345,924
Reclassified from prepaid lease payments (Note 19) BENHEEFRIBEEH 58 (fiE19) 1,205,780
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment (Note 17)  B#% - BE LB EEF 9 E (F3E17) 71,923
Increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBHERZ A FEEM 1,700,340
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE—ZEF=RA=+—H 5,762,928
The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31 March 2010 $’§ BrREMENR_ZT-—ZTF=A=+—H
and 31 March 2009 has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation ZEThEF=RA= 'l'— Bz RFE - TIRE

carried out on that date by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group, who has appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations. The valuation is arrived at by adopting the direct comparison
approach making reference to the recent transactions of similar
properties under the prevailing property market conditions.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to

EBEE$E@1E}H*&E§@Z%¢ BEREXMGER
%*Ki*ﬂﬁﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ[ﬂﬁé“ﬂ#%
B 2 MEE  EXYAGAERNHERL
BEELUMEZE I‘lﬁ%’é?f%&sﬁ,ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁ (X
TIABREMEDSRRABUNR DR SH B
21 RAERLBUAE -

AEBRBELHEERBEREREZHRA

earn rentals purpose are measured using the fair value model and are ¥ #E#m - WA A FERXGFE - WH KT
classified and accounted for as investment properties. All of the Group’s ~ 1EIREW - AEE 2 2 MW EWEH LR

investment properties are located on leasehold lands in the PRC under
medium-term leases.

CRARHEERACHEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The Group's prepaid lease payments represent land use rights in the
PRC under medium-term leases.

Analysed for reporting purposes as: BIRE B MIEL DT
Current portion e E
Non-current portion EmEEH D

As at 31 March 2009, the land use rights were held for development for
future use as investment properties. Upon the adoption of amendments
to HKAS 40, these properties were reclassified as investment properties
at 1 April 2009.

As at 31 March 2010, the amount represented land use rights acquired
during the year at the consideration of RMB145,660,000 (equivalent to
HK$165,470,000) which are held for development of hotel properties.

The Group is in the process of obtaining the land use right certificates
for the land use rights.

AEEZENBEERENEATHEE
FAEUNPE T ibERE -

The Group
rEE

2010 2009
—¥-%¥% CTTAF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FET
4,137 —
161,333 1,205,780
165,470 1,205,780

RZZTEENRF=ZRAR=+—8" ' Tti#FH
BDFERBRERBIREME - NEW
EBGHERFORZIEFTAE  ZF
MEER-_ZEZNFHNA—HEHHE
BILEYE -

M-ZE—ZTE=ZFA=+—H0 %285
AE R AR AB A R 8 145,660,000 7T (1H 55
7 165,470,0008 7T ) RIS A BIEER B
EIEME 2 T E AAE o

REBEER/RABLIMERERR LI
B FAHERE



The Group

AT COST

At 1 April 2008
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 March 2009
and 31 March 2010

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2008
Charge for the year
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 March 2009
and 31 March 2010

IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2008
Disposal of a subsidiary

At 31 March 2009
and 31 March 2010

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 March 2010

At 31 March 2009
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 #{ £ — & —ZF4F = H = — H ILF
Club
Trade marks debentures Total
g FES F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FAT
AEE
2%
RZZEZENFNOA—H 251,650 610 252,260
HE—EH B AR (251,650) — (251,650)
R=ZZFZThAF=A=+—H
rEZE—ZTF=F=+—H — 610 610
# 8
R-ZZFEZNFMA—H 40,090 — 40,090
FEXH 11,951 — 11,951
HE - BAA (52,041) — (52,041)

RZEZENF=ZA=+—H
r—FE—ZTF=ZA=+—H — — —

RAE

R-ZZEZTNFEMA—H 36,915 520 37,435
B E—fEHE AR R (36,915) — (36,915)
R-_ZZAF=ZA=+—H8E

—ET—FTF=FA=+—H — 520 520
AREE

R-ZE—ZTF=A=+—H — 90 90

R-—BEAE=A=+—A — 90 90
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Club
debentures
BES
HK$'000
FET
The Company NN
AT COST 29N
At 1 April 2008, RZZEZENFMA—H -
31 March 2009 —ETEAF=A=1+—H
and 31 March 2010 rZE—ZFF=ZA=+—H 610
IMPAIRMENT BE
At 1 April 2008, RZZFEZENFMA—H
31 March 2009 —EENF=A=1+—H
and 31 March 2010 r—E—ZFTF=ZA=+—H 520
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 March 2010 R-ZZE—ZEF=RA=+—H 90
At 31 March 2009 R-ZZEZTNRF=A=+—H 90

Trade marks

On 3 November 2004, the Group entered into two purchase
agreements to acquire the trade marks, service marks, logos and
commercial symbols of “Matsunichi” in Hong Kong and in countries
or districts outside the PRC (“non-PRC trade marks”) and in PRC
("PRC trade marks"”), respectively, with Matsunichi International
Holdings Limited (“MIHL") or/and Guangdong Matsunichi Electronics
Limited (“GME"), Guangdong Matsunichi Communication Technology
Company Limited (“GMCT") and others, in which Mr. Pan, a Director
of the Company, has beneficial interests in. The consideration was
satisfied by cash of HK$20,000,000 and issue of 5,000,000 new
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each.

RZZEZEMF+—A=Z8" ' AE£8 %5
HNBBEBREEERAR(MRAREE
BEDek,/ MERMLBEERERAA((E
RABER])  BERERNLBBEARERGD
ERAR(TERDBBMARE]) REA
AT MIEEERGE - WIREIRB ]
BIZ - RGZL  BEMNBELRREE
Kp B LA SNB R sk [ 2 4 R ([ FE e B
BEDRRPEZEN((HEEE] -
MARRZEEFRLENDBHKER -
ERNMBERRERDABMBRSE
BEmEm o B A £20000,000/% T
1 %% 175,000,000 f% & B% T (B 0.05 7% 7T 2 %7
TR AR o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H [L4F

Trade marks (Continued)

The resolution in respect of the above mentioned acquisitions was duly
passed by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting held
on 24 January 2005. Pursuant to the non-PRC trade marks agreement,
HK$20,000,000 cash was paid and 80,000,000 ordinary shares of
the Company were issued and allotted to MIHL or its nominees on 24
January 2005 resulted in a total consideration of HK$229,600,000.
The 80,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company issued at a price
of HK$2.62, being the closing price of the Company’s shares on 24
January 2005, the date on which the Group has taken control of the
non-PRC trade marks.

The PRC trade marks agreement was completed on 1 November 2005,
and accordingly, 15,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued to
Goldin Group Investment on that date at a price of HK$1.47, being the
closing price of the Company’s shares.

The fair value of trade marks at the date of acquisition could not
be estimated reliably. Accordingly, the fair value of trade marks was
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments
granted, measured at the date the Group obtained the trade marks.

Both the non-PRC trade marks and the PRC trade marks were amortised
over their useful lives of 20 years for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The trade marks were classified under the operating segment of
development and sales of digital consumer products and assessed
impairment based on the cash-generating unit of certain production
lines in respect of the sales of digital consumer products.

As disclosed in Note 14, Ocean Talent, in which the principal assets
were the trade marks was disposed of during the year ended 31 March
2009. The recoverable amounts of the trade marks were not less than
their carrying amounts as at the disposal date.

Club debentures

The club debentures are having an indefinite useful life because they are
expected to generate economic benefit indefinitely. The club debentures
are tested for impairment annually by reference to the market value.

BE ®)

ERLAZSERESEZIRABERLERE
WN-ZEZERFE—-F - +MWART 2R
REAAE EEXBB - REBEFEFERF
1Z % 5 - 3] £20,000,000 % 7T & X i -
80,000,000 K AR AR EBRIFE RN =
TERAF—AZ-+MHABITREETN
BEBREERERBA EHERES
229,600,000 JT. ° 180,000,000 % 7 2 &
LBk ER262E T (AR A RN R =
EERFEF—A -+ WABAREHRBI SR
B2 sl E A 2 WmE) 2 BIREIT -

hEEEHECR ST AE+— A —
A5 Ak © E itk + 15,000,000 B% & & B% B 7
EHE147B T 2 BE(AARRRG Z
WmE)EELRBETTREE(IRE) -

RUHE R B2 R A P EBERSE(GE -
At ARZAFEIZ2ERRLBRA
RETAZAVEFE  YRAKER
SRRz BHEE -

HE_TTZNF=ZA=1+—BILFE"
FFEEERTREERIRERAFH
20F N H o

BEREDAERBBHEERREREE
REDBUANREREREEBBHEE
mETHEERREGELBM 2 &G
A

FANKIFE14FTHH EE © Ocean Talent( K £ &
EEABE)ERBE_ZTNEFE=ZA=
T+T—HLEFEHE BmEzAKE$E
TMEREHERBZREE -

SFES

EMEFEEERUAEY RAR/E
BAESARTERATREENG - &
PEFRFLEMELETRENR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

FE LM - REEA
Deemed capital contribution RIEFE

Unlisted shares, at cost

o BHERZRERR

Less: Impairment loss recognised

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2010
and 31 March 2009 are set out in Note 45. During the year ended 31
March 2010, the Directors of the Company reviewed the carrying values
of the investments. The recoverable amounts of these investments
for the year are determined with reference to the Directors’ estimate
of discounted future cash flows and net assets of these investments
as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly, impairment loss of
HK$37,984,000 (2009: HK$27,746,000) was fully recognised in the
Company'’s statement of comprehensive income.

The Group's properties under development for sale are situated in the
PRC. All properties under development for sale are carried at lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Included in the properties under development for sale as at 31 March
2010 of RMB1,167,259,000 (equivalent to HK$1,326,006,000) (2009:
RMB1,714,938,000 (equivalent to HK$1,937,880,000)) were properties
under development for sale which are not expected to be completed
and available for sale within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period.

The Company

ART
2010 2009
—g-%8% -—TThE
HK$°000 HK$'000
T8 FBT
160,045 13,191
596,400 333,136
756,445 346,327
(81,843) (43,859)
674,602 302,468

AARETENBRAAN - ZE—FTF=F
=+—BERZZEZNAEF=ZA=+—HBZ
BERHRWES - BE_E—ZF=A
=+—BLEFERN ARAEZEMZ
EREZEAE - FRAZSFREZITHK
C&HENLEESRMERREZER
ﬁZﬂiXEEiﬁﬁiim%&é%@ﬁZﬁ
FTEETE o Bt - R (A & 837,984,000 %8
TT(ZZTZT NG ¢ 27,746,000 7T) 2 H R
RABEEWERRAER -

AEBZERTHEVRURTE - AT
ERRTFEVERRRARAIZERAFE
2 BIEE AR °

RZZE—ZTEF=ZA=+—8  AR¥
1,167,259,000 7t ( 48 % 7 1,326,006,000 75
L) (ZFEZENF © AR¥1,714,938,0007T
(#8571,937,880,000/8 7T ) ) Z B B 1F
EMERTBEHEEINRERRET+=
BAAREKRAIHBEECERPEEY
%a



IR EZRER AR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o YU % A i ik

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F

At 31 March 2009, assets classified as held for sale represented the land
cost amounted to RMB286,335,000 (equivalent to HK$325,277,000
(2009: HK$323,559,000)) acquired from KEEFIEREBGREA
AlTianjin Hi-Tech Holding Group Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech
Holding”) through the acquisition of assets and liabilities of 2 /& 25T
EREMERBZE AR AT Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property Development
Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property”) during the
year ended 31 March 2009, which would be disposed of within twelve
months subsequent to year ended 31 March 2009 (the “Disposal”).
It was carried at the lower of cost and fair value less cost to sell. A
deposit of RMB270,000,000 (equivalent to HK$306,720,000 (2009:
HK$305,100,000)) was received during the year ended 31 March 2009
and was disclosed as liabilities directly associated with assets classified
as held for sale at 31 March 2009.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there was a change in property
development plan of the acquirer of such assets which has delayed
finalisation of the sale and accordingly, the asset has not been sold by
the end of the reporting period. While as at 31 March 2010, the Group
is not able to determine the completion date of the Disposal, which is
subject to the finalisation of the changed properties development plan
by the acquirer. The Directors considered that (i) the assets are available
for immediate sale in their present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for the Disposal; (i) the consideration has been
substantially received and is not refundable; and (iii) actions required
from the acquirer to complete the Disposal indicated that it is unlikely
that significantly changes to the Disposal will be made. Accordingly, the
assets to be disposed of and the deposit received as mentioned above
remains to be disclosed as assets classified as held for sale and liabilities
directly associated with assets classified as held for sale as at 31 March
2010.

R-ZETNAE=ZA=+—H8 2EAH
BIEHEZEERERNEREESR
FERHERBERAR(REESR
VEEBHME) CEERBBEMMKE
HBREREBERQAA(RESRE
fx 1) W g 2 & & A K #286,335,000 7T
(HE M 3252770008 T (Z T NF :
323,559,000 7)) < ZHIAK AN (iR B E
—EEhF=A=+—BHLFERT=
BAREE(TRESFE]) - ZBEEER
RARAFEREEERNAME R 2R
K& AR - &< 518 A K #270,000,000
7T (1 5306,720,0008 7T (ZEZ 4
305,100,000/ L)) EREBE =TT NF
“A=t+—BLEFERKER BER=
TENGF=ZA=+—BEAEIBAERE
BIELECEAERERBAMNAERE

o

g —EFE=A=+—RHILLFE -
&?ﬁ?ZAE2%¥¥EJﬂ¥$”
PMEMEELETK  AZEER
RBERRBREE - A RZFT—
§¢:H:+—E'E#ﬁﬁ$ﬁﬁﬁ

REFZYMEZRRAEEH 2K - M
REBW N EEEEHEFEATH A -
EERR()ZREEEMNUERARER
R & B — MR KO8 E RSB R
& (i) BWBRABIREBARETATR
B R(i) BRERTRHEFENITE
BREEFETIKRAIREERNED - B
I RZZE—ZTF=ZA=+—HHELEX
it EEERERIIRGEE S
BRBAELECEERADERESR
FHEZEERBEMBNEE TUARK

5= o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ — % —%4F = A = | — H L&
The Group The Company
AEH AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F5 —TTNF ZE-ZEF IZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 1,269 1,269 = =
Less: Allowance for B REEEME
doubtful debts (1,269) (1,269) — —
Other receivables (note a) H b pE U 20 TE (M 3Ea) 66,971 146,673 — 128,028
Deposits (note b) & (M5Eb) 192,776 181,543 — —
Total trade and other F’%“MZBE R N EAth E Uk
receivables and deposits RIBRIEC BT 259,747 328,216 — 128,028
Notes: Hrat -
(@) As at 31 March 2010, other receivables mainly represented @ R-ZE—ZFFZHA=+—H Et

(b)

receivable from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property in respect of the
corresponding tax liability on waiver of shareholders’ loans borne
by Tianjin Hi-Tech Property upon the acquisition of assets and
liabilities of X)FHE s EFFMR 2 A Tianjin Huading Real Estate
Company Limited (“Huading”), a subsidiary acquired during the
year ended 31 March 2009. The amount is unsecured, interest-
free, repayable on demand and expected to be recovered within
the next twelve months from the end of the reporting period. As
at 31 March 2009, other receivables of the Group and the
Company mainly represented receivable from a disposed
subsidiary. The amount was unsecured, interest-free and fully
recovered during the year.

As at 31 March 2010, included in the Group's deposits is an
amount of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$181,760,000
(2009: HK$180,800,000)) which was acquired through the
acquisition of Huading during the year ended 31 March 2009,
was the earnest money paid to X EHRINNELEREFEEZES
Administrative Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park in
respect of the construction and operation of the polo club and
theme park (Note 17(b)). The amount is refundable when the
investment of the Group in the polo club and theme park reaches
RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to HK$181,760,000 (2009:
HK$180,800,000)), which is expected to occur in the next twelve
months from the end of the reporting period. The amount is
unsecured and interest-free.

®)

ﬁ%mﬁz ﬁﬁ%ii%ﬁ%é
ARWBEBXEEREEXERA

([#EZ ] 7ﬁﬂﬁi—gfﬂ¢
A=+ —HIFFEREZ R E AR
Al)2EERBERKNEREEN
MAEZ HEFIE B & ENRKE
IR EE T FNE o 3% B AE R
BB BB ER ARG
EHREHT = EAAYKE - K=
FENFZA=4+—H FEHE
/A EZE@EWMEI Z 5
—FEENBL IH o B A
I ﬁﬁ&%iwwﬁW@o

R-FE—FF=ZF=+—H  Z&
FHieF O EARBEE —EEN
FZHA=ZF—HIFENREZET
2 5 2 A K 160,000,000 T (18
Z58181,760,000/5 7T (= F --jzfﬁ
180,800,000/&T)) .2 &% + iZ 5 H
BERRAEE %ﬁ@&i‘fiﬁ N
il W%/i%ﬁfﬁnzﬁl@ EEE S
A;zFHZ/;%%f(/fmfﬁ(b)) Z
HEHERFEFREGEEREELR
Bz 1% & #Z T A & # 160,000,000
(1HZ 181,760,000 (—ZEZE
iF : 180,800,000,% v )) 5 (78 B 7
LB KA+ —EARA) Y E -
ZANBEBEAREE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H [L4F

RAREHR  MEREBRER  BK
RRZEBRAT AT EZSREEKD

There is nil balance of trade receivables, net of allowance of doubtful
debts at the end of the reporting period and hence, no aging analysis is

presented. T o
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERBBEE
2010 2009
—E-2F ZTThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 April R A—H 1,269 9,198
Eliminated upon disposals of subsidiaries & [ B A &) b — (8,078)
Exchange realignment PE W% — 149
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 1,269 1,269
The Group’s trade and other receivables and deposits that are NEEEEEB 2R EENINCZEE

denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the

A E Nz AN 6 B R KRR R N E i R

relevant group entities are set out below: BRZSWT :
usD HKD
E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHEIT
At 31 March 2010 n= 5,358 =
At 31 March 2009 R-ZTZ — 129,692

At 31 March 2009, the Company’s other receivables of
HK$128,028,000 (2010: Nil) were denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HKD"), a currency other than the functional currency of the Company.

R—_ZFEENF=ZA=+—8 ' A2RH
fib FE U 3% TH128,028000 8 T ( — & — Z
F o Em)IRBT ([ stE - Bk

RRRZIEEY -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Particulars of the amounts due from related companies in which Mr.
Pan, a Director of the Company, has beneficial interests are as follows:

Name of related company BEATEZE

BB BB RHR AR BERDAEARE
BRRAF D BRA R
Goldin Financial Holdings aRem(£8)
Limited (formerly known as BRAA
Fortuna International (B8 A B = BB
Holdings Limited) EEERRA)
Matsunichi Goldbase Limited ~ 2B & E{TREESR DA
MERNET (R BEERETF R
BRRF ARQA
MBES LA AT NSRS /NG|

Balance at
31.3.2010

R-Z—ZF
=A=+-H
&
HK$'000
FET

178

178

Balance at
1.4.2009

R-ZZhEF
mA—8
Z gtk
HK$'000
FET

76

82

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The Company

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, carry effective
interest at 5% (2009: 5%) per annum. The subsidiaries are not
expected to repay the advances within twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and the balances are classified as non-current.

ERURARRETELLEREES DL
BERARFAZFBENAT

The Group
rEE
Maximum Maximum
amount amount

outstanding Balance at Balance at outstanding
during 2010 31.3.2009 1.4.2008 during 2009
R-B-2F
AEAKRE R-ZFAF R-FENF —ZTAFR
XE2Z ZA=+-H mA—B HMRUEHRE

BERE Z AR Z AR ZBERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET THET
76 76 84 84

156 6 — 6
3,962 — — —
— — 160 160

— — 1,688 1,688

82 1,932

BRAFEDEER  2ERREREE -

NN

KB ARIRBELERR  RERF
FES%(ZTZTNF : 5%) 5 B aF
ZEMBARTENMEHRES+=
MARNEERR MEBMEHRESER
EREEE ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H IL4F

The Company (Continued)

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The Company’s amounts due from subsidiaries and amounts due to
subsidiaries of HK$4,864,795,000 and HK$129,889,000 respectively
(2009: HK$398,147,000 and HK$129,898,000 respectively) are
denominated in HKD, a currency other than the functional currency of
the Company.

Pledged bank deposits

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to a bank to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group with maturity of less than three
months and are therefore classified under current assets. The pledged
bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of the relevant
banking facilities.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set
out below:

Pledged bank deposits BHEFRITER
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2009 R-ZBEAF=A=+—H

The pledged deposits carry fixed interest rate of 0.01% (2009: 0.01%
t0 4.14%) per annum.

AKQE (&)

RATH A T RE R - %8RI
B (E3E -

KRR a2 FEW M B A R FRIE &FE AR
B 2 7 3B o 54,864,795,000 & T &
129889000 B L (ZZEZENF : DA A
398,147,000 7 JT 5 129,898,000% 7T ) Ji BA
RRRFZNEEEE AN BB TIIE -

SHEMRITERK

EEMRITERTDEER FRITZ2ER
MRERETASE ZZHE LR =1EA
ZIRITRE  BUBRIBER/IRDEE -
EEMRTEREREEERBRITRE
& ARRR AR o

U EEERZREEE NI 2EE
REBAZAEE 2D BRRITERDOT

usb
E
HK$'000
TET

6,726

EHETFRIEEEFF LN (ZEE
NE 001%E414%) 518 °



GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B 205 e o i ik

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Bank balances and cash

The Group’s bank balances and cash are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the relevant group entities are set

out below:
Bank balances and cash RITHEFRE®
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2009 RZZTENF=RA=+—H
The Company’s bank balances and cash are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Company are set out below:
Bank balances and cash RITEFERERER
At 31 March 2010 RZZE—ZF=A=+—H
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZTNF=A=+—8H

All bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from 0.01%
10 1.98% (2009: 0.01% to 4.14%) per annum.

RTEERBEE

NHBAEEER 2 ER NI ZEE
REBUzAEEZRITHEFRRSWOT

usD HKD

E BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAET
6,954 1,305
10 710

NARBZINEEEAINZ EWE BB
ZERRNRRITHEFERRSWAT

usD HKD
S BT
HK$'000 HK$°000
TET TAET
2 1,025

— 710

EEHRTEFTEMGAHNEFTE  BXA
FE001%E1.98%( ZZEZE N 4F : 001%
Z£4.14%) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H IL4F

An aged analysis of trade payables at the end of the reporting period is

RARERR - BNRKZ Kk D0

set out as follows: T
The Group The Company
rEE NS
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF —ZETNF ZB-TF ITTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET FEx FHET
0-90 days 0290 H 318,433 32,933 — —
91-180 days 91 £180 H — — — —
Over 180 days 180 B A I 1,654 1,654 — —
Total trade payables B BR R Aa%E 320,087 34,587 — —
Retention payables (note a)  FEHREE TH2F08 (Kitta) 52,282 — — —
Dividend payable FEFT AR B 1,102 1,102 1,102 1,102
Other payables (note b) H A FRE (B sEDb) 692,177 575,463 600 57
1,065,648 611,152 1,702 1,159
Notes: Wiat -
(@)  Retention payables are expected to be paid upon the expiry of @ [EVRETIEAEEHGRESS
the retention periods according to the respective contracts. AIRMR B B2 BB 55 1 o
(b) As at 31 March 2010, the amount mainly represented (i) b R-ZF-—FF=ZFA=4+—H F

consideration payable of RMB99,912,000 (equivalent to
HK$113,500,000) (2009: RMB174,160,000 (equivalent to
HK$196,801,000)) in relation to the acquisition of a wholly-
owned subsidiary, XEGZEiRIEBRAE] Tianjin Hi-Tech
Goldin Investment Company Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin”)
during the year ended 31 March 2009, (ii) advance from Tianjin
Hi-Tech Property, in respect of the construction and operation of
the polo club and theme park, amounting to RMB160,000,000
(equivalent to HK$181,760,000) (2009: RMB136,927,000
(equivalent to HK$154,727,000)) with effective interest rate at
21% (2009: 21%) up to 31 December 2009, (iii) an obligation to
acquire minority interests of RMB190,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$215,840,000 (2009: HK$214,700,000)) in relation to a
forward contract to further acquire the remaining equity interest
of 48.72% of a subsidiary, Huading, from A &3l #E R (7
AR 2\ "] Tianjin Hi-Tech Technology Development Company
Limited (“Tianjin Hi-Tech Development”); and (iv) consideration
payable of RMB115,660,000 (equivalent to HK$131,390,000) in
respect of land use rights acquired during the year ended 31
March 2010. As at 31 March 2010, the above amounts in (i) to
(iv) are unsecured and repayable on demand.

Bz HEZBOIREEZ=ZFEFN
FZHA=F—HIFEANGKE
2ENBELNAXEFFERKE
ERANGI([XEEFFK]Z
JE 11 H 1B A K #99912,000 7T (14
Z R113500000& T ) ( = FZE ]
F A 8174160000 7T (15 Z R
196,801,000, 7)) : (N E = F=F
NFE+ - A=Z+—HBXZEELEH
ERRERREEERERTER
B2 #.2 £ 5 A K ¥ 160,000,000 7T
(152 R181,760,000%8 T ) ( — EZE
NEFE: AR #1369270007T (155
R154,727,000/8T)) » I 17 B B F
E21% (= FZF/NF - 21%) i 8«
(it A KB GEFRIRZHRR B IR
RE]([KEEFEFRBEZER]) I
Wb — BT /B 1\ ] ZE 42 67 T48.72%
RIEZRIAEA)Z W EL B R T
= & LA K #190,000,000 7T (16 %
R215840,0008 T ( = FEE N F -
214,700,000 & or )) : R(v)FE 5t R
B —_F—ZFF=A=+—HIF
EFY T 1 &S T2
1B A 11156600007 (152 R
131,390,000 ) o R =ZFE —FF
ZA=+—H LXOEWEFZ
B BRI ESAEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The Group’s trade and other payables that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the relevant group
entities are set out below:

X
W
Al

oy

At 31 March 2010 I
At 31 March 2009 P

Al

—zg
TN

A
A

+—8
+—8

The average credit period on purchases of goods was 75 days. The

Group had financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

The Company’s other payables that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the Company are set out below:

At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZF=ZA=+—H
At 31 March 2009 RZEBEZNAF=ZA=+—H

DB EEE R RSN B
B i 2 7 5 0 B R 30 % L 4t B A+ 3RO
m -

usD HKD RMB

E BT AR®
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FTAET FTAET
1,560 1,702 —
— 1,102 112

BEEmZFARFEEHRISE - AKH
BREVBRBREERE  UERZAE
NRIBEREEMAERE

ARBIANBEEE NI ZEBE REMZ
ARAREMEMNFKIBWNT

HKD
BT
HK$’'000
THET
1,702
1,102
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H [L4F

The Group and the Company

The amount represents amount due to Matsunichi Communications
(Hong Kong) Limited in which Mr. Pan is a Director, who has beneficial
interest in this company.

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The Group’s and the Company’s amount due to a related company that

is denominated in currency other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities is set out below:

At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=ZA=+—H
At 31 March 2009 RZBEZEAF=ZA=+—H

REERADF

ZRARENRBEEMR(ER)BERAF
ZHBR - BEEFEENZRARTHEEE

"

\$E\o

|/

Bk

AR TEER - REREBEREE -

FEFBRARAAZHBEEERER Y
REERIINZ BB BB Z BN —
BRBRIBELT :

HKD
AT
HK$'000
FAT
44,381
6,542
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £
Present value of minimum
Minimum lease payments lease payments
BEXfFHESE BEXZNHESEZRE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BF C—TENF ZB-BF TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET FERT FAT
The Group REH
Amounts payable BERMERSE
under finance leases: Bz eH
Within one year —FR 62 62 44 44
In the second to FZEERF
fifth year inclusive (BREEEMF) 96 154 94 134
158 216 138 178
Less: Future finance charges & : KK @& & (20) (38) — —
Present value of HEEB
lease obligations 2 RE 138 178 138 178
Less: Amount due for W —FA
settlement within FIEAE
one year B (44) (44)
Amount due for —Fi&EHE
settlement after one year B 94 134
The lease terms are five years. Interest rates are fixed at the contract HEFHARF - MEXRETLEAAH
date. All leases are on a fixed repayment basis and no arrangements Bl -MEBEHEHNERETEERELE -

have been entered into for contingent rental payments. WERIVEMBEBE AR 228 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ &% —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F

On 28 August 2007, convertible bonds with an aggregate principle
value of HK$1,418,704,000 were issued by the Company (“Convertible
Bonds"). The Convertible Bonds are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible Bonds had
been split into liability component, conversion option derivative,
and equity participants reserve. The excess of the fair value of the
convertible bonds issued on 28 August 2007 to all shareholders over
the proceeds received from the issue of Convertible Bonds was debited
to equity participant reserve. The liability component and the conversion
option derivative are measured at fair value on initial recognition.

The movements of the liability component and conversion option
derivative of the Convertible Bonds for the year is set out as below:

X

RZZFZELFNA=Z+/\B - NQFE
:J/%@ZK(}%EF%418704,000/%7527?;@@&
T%Mﬁboﬂ%@ﬁ&%%tﬁ%

-\

2 ¥
LEE
E

TW&E%%%WHZ%%HEE
CHBHBETAETARK
$%ﬁAﬁﬁ R-BZLFENRA=-+
ANERCIEES k%%ﬁZTﬁhL%Z

?ﬁ@ﬁﬁ 1T AT R BB 75 R 2 P 15

KB Z#7 E1pakh$/,uﬂﬁﬁ

%Ei ARABBMETET AR & RME
R RN FEFE -

DB d

\
m
/

FJJJLL\T
m
o F
Tl:)l'

mmkESZBERN KA BBETE
TARFARAZEHWT :

The Group and The Company

AEERAAT
Conversion
Liability option
component derivative Total
Rin AR
2 EBG PTET A BEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET AT
At 1 April 2008 R-TZEN\FENA—A 1,047,552 792,589 1,840,141
Interest expenses FE X 201,956 — 201,956
Interest paid EH FE (106,550) — (106,550)
Exchange gain recognised KB ER
in profit or loss R g (38,442) — (38,442)
Exchange realignment BEE 3 33X 38,442 29,086 67,528
Changes in fair value NEEZEE — (424,960) (424,960)
At 31 March 2009 RZZETZNFE=ZRA=+—H 1,142,958 396,715 1,539,673
Interest expenses B 222,032 — 222,032
Interest paid EENEESS (106,402) — (106,402)
Exchange gain recognised RiBmP R
in profit or loss R g (6,069) — (6,069)
Exchange realignment BEE 5 32X 6,069 2,106 8,175
Changes in fair value NEEZEH) — 9,838 9,838
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=ZA=+—H 1,258,588 408,659 1,667,247
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ & —Z4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The Convertible Bonds are unsecured, carry interest at 7.5% (2009:
7.5%) per annum and will mature on 28 August 2012 (“Maturity
Date”). Interest is repayable semi-annually after the date of issue of the
Convertible Bonds. The effective interest rate is 20% (2009: 20%) per
annum.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are set out as follows:

Conversion

At the option of the holders, the Convertible Bonds will be converted
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company on any business day
during the period between the third anniversary of the date of issue of
the Convertible Bonds and the maturity date, at an initial conversion
price of HK$6 per share (subject to adjustments).

The conversion price shall be adjusted downwards on the date falling
6 months from the date of issue of the Convertible Bonds and every
6 months thereafter (the “Reset Date”) to the arithmetic average
price of the Company’s share for each of the 30 consecutive trading
days immediately prior to the Reset Date, provided that the adjusted
conversion price shall never be below HK$3.50, subject to the
customary adjustments such as for sub-divisions, consolidation and
reductions in the share capital of the Company.

On 27 August 2008, 27 February 2009 and 27 August 2009, the
conversion price has been reset to HK$5.86, HK$4.08 and HK$3.50 per
share, respectively.

ﬂﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’u¢%7wu—%
THE:75%) st B YR=_FT—=F
NA= +AEF%UU%ED0$%H
RBRESE B ATXFEEERN
B BEMRATFE20%(—ETNF
20%) °

AR ES 2 EE2ERET

L%

BRAAZEE AJHRBREFATRE
T}ﬁﬂxﬁﬁ”‘ﬂi‘f”*flﬂﬁﬂﬁi‘l
HERRcEMERALBAARRARZ
BREBRR LA BMERTRET
(A THE) -

HmEARBETARBRESBHES R
NEARERBRERENEA(TEEE
B THEARAREEREEEHRFIE
BIERXZA 2RO EMFHE L
AR HEMENFENIS0ETT » R ED
KA BHFREIBARRBRAEE R A

o

RZZFEZNFNAZ+EH ZFZT R
F_A-F++tAR-_ZETAENA=-F
+tH RBREDFEETATRS86H

JC * 4088 L &350 TT ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F
Redemption FEE
No Convertible Bonds may be redeemed by the Company and the RABRFAEATFEREE B AIE D A
holders prior to the maturity date. Any Convertible Bonds which BMRES - FARBEA TFEEIE(F
remains outstanding by 4:00 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on the Maturity BERE) MARTEZAIBRKRESEHAA

Date shall be redeemed by the Company at 115% of its then
outstanding principal amount.

The conversion option derivative is carried at fair value at the end of
each reporting period with change in fair value recognised in profit
and loss. At 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009, the fair values
of the conversion option derivative in the Convertible Bonds are
HK$408,659,000 and HK$396,715,000 respectively, and are calculated
using the Binominal model. Details of the variables and assumptions of
the model are as follows:

Share price % (&
Exercise price TR fE
Remaining life T &5 F HR

Risk-free rate @ e B R
Expected volatility TE B R 18
Expected dividend yield 78 B A% B M 2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price before the grant date for previous three
years.

ARERARITEASIEL115% T IAER -

pul

HBMBETETERESREHRZAF
BIER AFEZEHRETRNER -
RZE—ZTF=A=1+—HERZZZEA
F=ZA=+—8 " AI#RES 2 LB
BESTE T B 2R FE 5 5 A408,659,000
77T %.396,715,0008 7T+ Th LA Z AR X
AE e ZEATASHERBREAT

31 March 2010 31 March 2009

—E-EF —EEhF
=A=+-8 =A=+-8
HK$3.50 /&t HK$3.00 7T
HK$3.50 /&t HK$4.08 & 7T
2.41 years 3.41 years F
0.96% 1.29%

52.0% 65.0%

0% 0%

AHREDRBRE AP =F2ER
B (B 2% 1R i & 5E e
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # %% —

Warrants (Note a)

Presented as:

Non-current liabilities (Note b)

Notes:

(@) Asat 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009, 117,143,353 units of
warrants is still outstanding. At 31 March 2010 and 31 March
2009, the fair value of the warrants amounted to HK$378,000
and HK$27,270,000, respectively. These fair values at 31 March
2010 and 31 March 2009 were calculated using the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

Share price
Exercise price

Expected volatility

Remaining life
Risk free rate

Expected dividend yield

—F—

HE

TIEE
TR R
T F A
EE R 8
TEEIIR B

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price before the grant date for previous

three years.

@

31 March 2010

—ZE=ZH =1 —HILFRE
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TThF ZEB-FTF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T FHET FAT
R gz (KMiska) 378 27,270 378 27,270
The Group The Company
rEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2F —TEThF ZEB-FTF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T T FET FAT
EIATE7 :
JERB A E (Fzb) 378 27,270 378 27,270
e -

R-E—FF=ZF=+—HAFK - F
FENF=ZA=+—H 117143353
@ﬂ&fﬁﬁ%ﬁ@ 5018 12 FE R

—ZFEF-HA=+—HR-FZE
ﬁ¢£ﬁ£+—ﬁz N E 5B A
WM%%E&HHMW@E i

—ZFEF=ZFH=F+—HAR-FZF
ﬂi_ﬁ_+ BZ R FETZL =
EHAE G E o ZEAZBABE
wr

31 March 2009

ZEA=+—-H ZFEEN=HA=1+—H
HK$3.507% ¢ HK$3.00/% 7T
HK$6.00;% T HK$6.00,% 7T
35.7% 57.7%

0.4 years# 1.4 yearst
0.15% 0.56%

0% 0%

TR B NG T3 R #% 1 B B AT = F 1Y
R EJRBIE L KNG T EE
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —F4F = H =+ —H IL4F

[Had /g3 -
Notes (Continued): Bet (&)

O —EARACBI SRR

Fa. sipussEny
rants. ptions use ieEg) /%’Z guz ﬁ&ﬁﬁwfsﬁzwi
the fair value of warrants are based on Director’s best estimate. 4 s
The value of a warrant varies with different variables of certain /Euf BRI 2 /EEWE T TLH
Bk TR Z 2 2K o

subjective assumptions.

(b) BREEZEHAERN AR E K

(b)  Warrants will be settled by the Cqmpgﬁys equity shares and is P e A
therefore classified as non-current liabilities. & o

The movements in major deferred tax liabilities recognised during the FACZERREIZELEHEEREZZ

year are as follows: PN

Undistributed Revaluation
earnings of of investment

subsidiaries properties Total

MEAEZ REYHE
R 53 K % Fl B #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 April 2008 R-_ZEENEFENA—H 29,100 396,696 425,796
Exchange realignment bE H, 1,069 14,558 15,627
Charge (credit) to profit or loss RiEZP MR (GTA) 25,514 (118,368) (92,854)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHE QR (55,683) — (55,683)
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZTNF=A=+—8H — 292,886 292,886
Exchange realignment ME 5 38 & — 1,556 1,556
Charge to profit or loss RiEz PR — 425,085 425,085
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZEF=A=+—H — 719,527 719,527

According to a joint circular of Ministry of Finance and State & fR 87 I &0 }2 X %ﬁf’”@ B2 Bt & B A B A
Administration of Taxation, Cai Shui 2008 No. 1, dividend distributed ~ [2008]15% * B —ZTZ/\F— A — B UK ES
out of the profits generated since 1 January 2008 shall be subject to & ) 9k 2 A% B 78 12 10% %5 49 1 25 P 15 B W0 4R
EIT at 10% and withheld by the PRC entity, pursuant to Articles 3 and ~ JEFE B3 R EB27 R H B HE 4RI 91 {5 i
27 of the EIT Law and Article 91 of its Detailed Implementation Rules. B EEEH - RO KB 2 ETEHIBEEEE I
Deferred tax liability on the undistributed earnings had been accounted & 10% A Bk °

at the tax rate of 10%.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

At 31 March 2010, the Group had unused tax losses of HK$132,990,000
(2009: HK$136,858,000) available for offset against future profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in the tax losses
are losses of HK$71,694,000 (2009: HK$75,562,000) that will expire
within five years from the end of the reporting period. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely. There were no other significant
temporary differences arising during the year or at the end of the
reporting period.

At 31 March 2010, the Company had unused tax losses of HK$61,296,000
(2009: HK$61,296,000) available for offset against future profits. The
losses may be carried forward indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such tax losses due to unpredictability of
future profit streams.

Number of shares

BH&E

Notes 2010
B & —Z-ZF
Ordinary shares of SREE005 BT
HK$0.05 each 2 BBk
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April and 31 March ROA—BR
=B=+—H 10,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEBEARAR
At 1 April REA—H 1,222,582,293
Issue of new shares upon 1TIE B AR
exercise of share options BT (a) 200,000
Issue of new shares upon TR E
exercise of warrants BTG (b) =
At 31 March R=R=+—H 1,222,782,293

M-ZE-—TE=FA=+—80 K&£EX
B 2 FIAE18 132,990,000 T (Z 2=
JLEF + 136,858,000/ 7t ) A AR K 85 H 12
A o B B & R A SOR 2 S B TR
W ERFHBEEERTAELHBEE -
AT EER A71,694008 T (—EF
FLE : 75,562,000 T ) B8 - B RS
HARBAAFARER EMEEATER
Hige e FNYRBERRTELME
ANERFER -

M-—ZE—ZTE=ZFA=+—0 AQaAKkK
A #8518 561,2960008 T (— 2 Z
FL4E : 61,296,000 7T ) » AT 4 1K 85 K 5K
wmH o B ERBLEE - AR B ER
PR 2 AR TR M - W ERZEHE
BEERARCHBEE -

Share capital

S
2009 2010 2009
“ETAE ZR-%F -ITAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER  TER
10,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
1,222,464,693 61,129 61,123
117,600 = 6
1,222,582,293 61,139 61,129
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F

During the year ended 31 March 2010, 200,000 new shares
of HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued at a price of
HK$1.32 per share upon exercise of share options granted on 28
September 2005. The new shares issued rank pari passu with the
existing shares in issue in all respects.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, 117,600 new shares
of HK$0.05 each in the Company were issued at a price of
HK$6.00 per share upon exercise of 117,600 units of Warrants.
The subscription money of approximately HK$706,000 had been
received in full upon the exercise. The new shares issued rank pari
passu with the existing shares in issue in all respects.

As at 31 March 2010, 117,143,353 (2009: 117,143,353) units
of Warrants were still outstanding which would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
117,143,353 (2009: 117,143,353) additional shares of HK$0.05
each of the Company. Assume the outstanding warrants were
exercised in full, the total subscription money received will
amount to HK$702,860,000 (2009: HK$702,860,000).

The Group

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 42.

PRC statutory reserves are reserves required to be maintained under the
relevant PRC laws applicable to PRC subsidiaries of the Company and
are non-distributable reserves of the subsidiaries.

@ REE-ZE—ZTF=A=+—81t
FERN R_TETRFNLA=ZTN
AR CBRETER  BEREGR
IRNBILZEBRBETAATFRE
{B0.05 7 7T 2 200,000 % 1 B 17 ° Ff
BOZFRMRS TEEREERN

e ICED R

b)) REZ-_ZTETZALF=A=+—81t
FER - 117,600 % & i% E{E0.057%5
TLZ AR AR EAT(E117,60017 3R
% # 3 1M 4% & 1% 6.00 74 7T 2 B 15 %
17 » REBFRIBX706,00078 TR ITIE
BFE 2 BURER © ATET Z FTAR 1D R
ETHEREROE=ZERSEZ

R—ZZE—ZFTF=Z/F=+—H"
117143353 ( = & T i, F:
117,143,353) 0 R IR #E & H K 1T
F BARARRFZERER B
B EE AN 1T117,143353( — 2 E 1
F 1 117,143,353) R Z R EE0.05/8
TTZARNABIRG - REBEEKITEZ
RBREFC2EITE BB 2RE
X I8 48 K8 #% /5702,860,000 78 7T (=
TE N ¢ 702,860,000/ TT) ©

REE

AEBEFHEDFRARERAZFA

1>

FEEERBORBERRARAZH
BB AR A B BENM R
B REBNBARZ T DIk -
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The Group (Continued)

PRC statutory reserves as at 1 April 2008 comprised statutory surplus
reserve and enterprise expansion reserve which represented 12% of
the annual audited net profit after taxation of a PRC subsidiary of the
Company as approved by Directors of the subsidiary. The ratios for
appropriations among these reserves are determined at the discretion
of the Board of Directors of the respective PRC subsidiary. When the
balance of such reserves reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital, no further appropriation is required. Upon the disposal of a
subsidiary during the year ended 31 March 2009, statutory reserves of
HK$74,278,000 in that subsidiary was transferred to retained profits.

The statutory surplus reserve can be used to set off against accumulated
losses whilst the enterprise expansion reserve can be used for expansion
of production facilities or increase in registered capital.

Equity participants reserve represented the excess of the fair value of
the Convertible Bonds issued on 28 August 2007 to all shareholders
over the proceeds received from the issue of Convertible Bonds,
gain on the surrender which was granted to an existing shareholder
of the Company as at 24 November 2008 and gain/loss on sale of
certain assets/liabilities to a Director and controlling shareholder of the
Company.

KEE (2)

RIEZENFHUA—BZPEEERHE
HEEABEREEARBEHAKX &
ARB—RPEHBRARAZERAE
HZHBRARFELERBRBEMANZ
12% ° ZEfEH 27 Bt Ol i & o BB
BARIZEFEMRBRE - HEREE
B /&~ R A& AN 250% - RIEE B F
B - RBE_TTANF=ZA=+—H
LEEHE-—ZRMBEARE ZMER
Al Z274,27800078 TL A E B 2 E B 2R

Bm A o

R RSB TR RS RHER @
&R RR G BRI B (E AR A E R
M AR -

BARZEARBBER-_ZZTLFNAZ
TNERZBRRETZARRESA
FEAERBETHRRESMEFER
BE_ZTZN\F+-HA-FTOEBEETR
RA—BRERRZIAERGE Z B
URHERNEE BET - RRAE
EREBRRR 2 B B8 e



The Company

At 1 April 2008

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Deemed distribution upon disposals
of subsidiaries

Surrender of share options

Exercise of warrants

At 31 March 2009

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income
for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year

Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments
Exercise of share options
Lapse of share options

At 31 March 2010

At 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated under Section 79B of the Companies Ordinance, consisted of f#
retained profits of HK$758,521,000 (2009: HK$912,470,000).

IR EZERER D

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R-ZZ\FMA-A

FEER
AEEHM2AERA

AEEZERAER

REERBAR
REIE

MERERE

TERBRER

RZTENEF
=A=+-8

FEER

AEEHMR2ARA

AEE2ARA(FX)
ekl
BRURALEE R
PARR R R ETE 2
TR RE
BREXR

RZZ-ZE
ZA=+-8

O

Share
premium

R A3 1

HK§'000
THTT

2,961,700

1,045

2,962,745

339

2,963,084

f o B 25 e o B ik

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F

AN
Retained
Share-based Equity Capital profits
compensation  participants  redemption Translation (accumulated
reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
R BRESEA &K REEF
A 51 ME#E BEFEE (RHER) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET FHET FHET
33,760 (201,860) 173 90,357 (799,165) 2,084,965
— — — — 1,705,182 1,705,182
_ _ = 76,048 = 76,048
— — — 76,048 1,705,182 1,781,230
— (64,290) — — — (64,290
(6,453) 10,590 — — 6,453 10,590
= = = = = 1,045
27,307 (255,560) 173 166,405 912,470 3,813,540
— — — — (153,949) (153,949)
— — — 177,19 — 177,119
= = = 177,19 (153,949) 23,170
19,612 — — — — 19,612
(85) — — — — 254
(250) — — — — (250)
46,584 (255,560) 173 343,524 758,521 3,856,326
R-ZZE-—TF=HA= = IRNY/NSS I
tRRFEBDBRELR f%%mwm+

ﬁm

B FE 1R B8 3% F 758,521,000 7T (= &
912,470,000 7T ) °

i

L

A
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the
purpose of providing incentives or rewards to participants.

Under the share option scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company
may grant options as an incentive to selected participants, including
Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in
the Company at the price determined by the Directors of the Company,
but shall not be lower than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (ii) the
average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. The
maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the total number
of shares of the Company on the date of adopting the Scheme. An
option may be exercised at any time within ten years from the date,
upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance.

The offer of a grant of share options under the scheme may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer by the grantee.
The vesting and exercisable period of the share option granted is
determinable at the entire discretion of the Board of Directors but the
exercisable period will not exceed a period of ten years immediate after
acceptance of grant.

7 D A B E — A B AR R BT K A
8))  NEBRE TSRS -

BEZTE  ARFEFEEMBETLR
HE (BEARRRENBAR ZESE)
REBREEAHAEREEB ZHE -
AERREBURARREZETZER
RIEARRB R - HEHBESTIERG)
AR R DR ERER L B BB
ZUWTE (VAR RIBRHD R BEERER
HEHBAAEERZBEBRIAZ FHK
ME: RARABRH zEHE(UESE
BEE) o IRIBZFTEIME L 2 B ERET
FRAZETZROESEE T BER
BMZTa B2 ARRBERITRG &
H210% - REMR S 1ETE  BR
RETER 2 BREH10F AT EIT
f# o

BIRZT IR L ERE 2 EE - AN E
FZHHB28ANBAARRAEMN - BER
TERECEBHRARTERAESS R
EEE BITERTSBaERAREE
104F o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s share options TEEBFARRABREZFEBRE
and movements in such holdings during the year: BRIEE 228
Details of share options held by employees (other than Directors) of the HMARREE (EZRINFHE ZERE
Company are as follows: FHEBEWT
Subscription
price per share Number of share options
SRABE BREHE
Surrendered Granted Exercised Lapsed
Before After Outstanding during  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment Exercisable period at 1.4.2008 theyear  at31.3.2009 the year the year theyear  at31.3.2010
RZBBNF RZBBAF R-B-%F
mA-H ZA=+-8 ZA=+-8
RHAH BEA BER TEH HRTE FREME HATHE FRERE FREAE  FRBAR i RITHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(note 1) (note 2) (note 3)
(HizE1) (HizE2) GE=)
5.2.2004 1.30 120 5.2.2005t04.2.2014 672,630 — 672,630 — — — 672,630
“ZTMFE_AEA —ZTRF-FAAZ
—R-RE-_ARA
20.4.2004 1.54 142 20.4.2004 t0 19.4.2014 567,783 = 567,783 = = = 567,783
—ZIMF “RENFMA=TAZE
mA=+H —Z-mEMATAR
28.9.2005 1.43 132 28.9.2005 t0 27.9.2015 1,621,050 = 1,621,050 = (200,000) = 1,421,050
—ZTRF ZERRFAAZTNRE
RA=+NB “E-AFAA-+tA
27.11.2007 — 6.56 27.11.2007 t0 26.11.2017 10,000,000 (2,000,000) 8,000,000 — = = 8,000,000
“TRLF “ERLE+-AZtTtLRAZE
+—A=++A S B P
3.8.2009 — 330 3.82010t02.8.2019 — — — 3,714,000 — (198,000) 3,516,000
“ZZNFNAZR —R-FF)\AZRE
“E-NFNAZR
3.8.2009 — 330 3.82011t02.8.2019 — — 3,714,000 — (198,000) 3,516,000
“EEAENAZH —T-—%/\A=RAZ
“E-NAENAZH
3.8.2009 — 330 3.82012t02.8.2019 — — — 4,952,000 — (264,000) 4,688,000
“FEAFN\AZH “F--%)\A=RHZE
“E-AFNAZH
12,861,463 (2,000,000) 10,861,463 12,380,000 (200,000) (660,000) 22,381,463
Weighted average
exercise price HK$5.39 HK$6.56 HK$5.18 HK$3.30 HK$1.32 HK$3.30 HK$4.23

METHTRE 539770 6.5675 T 518% T 330 13287 3307 423870
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

Details of share options held by the Directors of the Company are as

follows:
Subscription
price per share

SRABE
Before After
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment
RHAH BEA BER
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(note 1) (note 2)
(HizE1) (HizE2)
3.8.2009 — 330

“ERNAENAZH

382009 — 330
“ERAENA=A

3.8.2009 — 330
“ERAENA=A

Weighted average
exercise price

TR

Exercisable period

3.8.2010 10 2.8.2019
—T-TF)\A=HZE
—ET-AFN\AZH
3.8.201110 2.8.2019
—Z——F\A=HZ
—Z-AFN\AZH
3.8.201210 2.8.2019
—T-—f)\R=HZE
—T-AFN\AZH

Outstanding at
1.4.2008
R-BENE
MA-H

i RATE

Surrendered
during
the year

FREHE

HARFRESHA ZBBREFBOT

Number of share options

Outstanding

at 31.3.2009

R-BEAE
ZA=t+-8
HRATE

BREHE

Granted
during
the year

FRERY

(note 3)
GE=)

1,080,000

1,080,000

1,440,000

3,600,000

HK$3.30
33087

Exercised
during
the year

FRETE

Lapsed
during
the year

FREXH

Outstanding
at31.3.2010

R-B-%F
=ZA=t-8
i RATE

1,080,000

1,080,000

1,440,000

3,600,000

HK$3.30
33087
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ % —FA4F = H =+ —H IL4F
Details of share options held by other participants of the Company are BAARAEMBEEREGZEREFE
as follows: mE
Subscription
price per share Number of share options
SRABE BREHE
Surrendered Granted Exercised Lapsed
Before After Outstanding at during  Outstanding during during during  Outstanding
Date of grant adjustment  adjustment Exercisable period 1.4.2008 theyear  at31.3.2009 the year the year theyear  at31.3.2010
RZIBBNF RZBBAF R-B-%F
MA-H ZA=+-8 ZA=+-8
REAH BEA BER TEH HRTE FREME HATHE FRERE FREAE  FREAR i RITHE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
(note 1) (note 2) (note 3)
(BizE1) (FizE2) (Ki3E3)
5.2.2004 130 120 52.2005t0 4.2.2014 2,657,875 = 2,657,875 = = = 2,657,875
—ZTMFE_AEA “ZTRE-ATAZE
—F-mE-AEA
20.4.2004 154 142 20.4.2004 t0 19.4.2014 367,695 = 367,695 = = = 367,695
“EEMFMA=TA “EEMFMA=TAZE
“EZ-MEMATAR
3.8.2009 = 330 3.82010t02.8.2019 = = — 2,205,000 = = 2,205,000
“EEAENAZH —Z-Z£/\f=RZ
“E-NFNAZR
3.8.2009 — 330 3.82011102.8.2019 — — — 2,205,000 — — 2,205,000
“EEAENAZH —Z-——£/1f=AZ%
“E-NFNAZR
3.8.2009 — 330 3.820121t02.8.2019 — — — 2,940,000 — — 2,940,000
“EENENAZH —Z--£/\f=AZ
“E-NFNAZR
3,025,570 = 3,025,570 7,350,000 = = 10,375,570
Weighted average
exercise price HK$1.23 — HK$1.23 HK$3.30 — — HK$2.70

MEFHTRE 12387 123870 3307 270%7T
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # %% —

Notes:

—RAEZH = —HIREE

The closing prices of the Company s shares immediately preceding the
date of grant of 5 February 2004, 20 April 2004, 28 September
2005, 27 November 2007 and 3 August 2009 were HK$1.30,
HK$1.48 HK$1.43, HK$6.56 and HK$3.25, respectively.

As a result of the open offer issue of the Company on 22 August
2007, the number of share options and the exercise prices have been
adjusted in accordance with the requirements of Rule 17.03(13) of
the Listing Rules and the supplementary guidance issued by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 5 September 2005.

On 3 August 2009, 12,380,000, 3,600,000 and 7,350,000 share
options with estimated fair values of HK$27,620,000, HK$8,032,000
and HK$16,398,000, were granted to employees, Directors and other
participants respectively, at the exercise price of HK$3.30.

The vesting period ends on the date the exercisable period of the share
options begins.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the share price
at the date of exercise was HK$2.98.

Share options granted to other participants are measured at fair value

of options granted as the fair value of the services rendered cannot be
estimated reliably.

Biat -
1. ZARABROGREERHAH-FZF
ME-—HARH  —FEZpmEpm A =

+A - :?%ﬁ'ﬁiﬂﬁ:+/15 .
—EEtFF—A=F AR
EAFNA=ZHEZHKTE ‘5’//‘%
1.30 8 ¢ « 148 % ¢ ~ 143 & 7T *
6.56,8T K% 3258 7T °

2. WRELTHEAFEIZ01)EZ HE
REBHALXGHERAGIR-ZF
FEARFENATHEHZES BT
BREHARTEEEAR-ZFE
+ENF -+ - AU HERETRG
M 1EML 52 -

3 —EZNFNAZH - 12,380,000
/ + 3600,000 7 & 7,350,000 {7 f#% /g
1# (151 2 F 1B 5276200005 T
8032,000 /& 7T [} 16,398 000% 7T ) &
UITIEB330B T ORI FE T IES
EFZRAMBEE -

SEANBERETEREARZBER -
MERNBETEZEREMS - NTEAR
H 2 BB A298B T °

AR RERE 2 A FETEER S bR

MEMBEZERLZBREDRERHEZ
BEEAFENE -
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These fair value were calculated using the Binomial model. The inputs
into the model for share options granted on 3 August 2009 were as
follows:

Share price as at grant date R BB ZRE
Exercise price TR E

Expected volatility T8 HA R 18
Remaining life T &h & A
Risk-free rate i [ b B K
Expected dividend yield T HA AR Bk a=
Exercise multiple TR EE

Exit rate R

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of
the Company’s share price before the grant date for previous three
years. The exercise multiple was to account for the early exercise
behaviour of the share options granted by the Company.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in comprising the fair value
of share options are based on Director’s best estimate. The value of an
option varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

IR EZRER AR

ATEHRA-ERERHE - R
TAENAZREL 2 BREZEAE
AZBEMT :

HK$3.247% 7T
HK$3.3078 7T
68.20%

10 yearsfF
2.24%

0%
4.01-4.21
0%

BEKBDRARE AR =F 28R
AIREELKEMEE - fTEEBIIA
VAR BR AN 2 B P 3% h P B A 2 SR AT AT
TR

—EABRAC BEGFBREZATE -

EREREATERMACZHIMRE
BEREFZREMT - BREEER
RETIEBRRZ TRAZEHMAE -



GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B 205 e o i ik

For the year ended 31 March 2010 # & & —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F £

The Group acquired the following subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2009 with details below.

(i)

AEERBE_ZTNF=A=1t—H
LTEERBUATHEAR  #IH&ERT

X o
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star Property () REBRFEFHME
During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group acquired RBE-_ZZNF=A=1+—8H
certain properties and its related assets and liabilities, through LEEE AEEFBMEUARE
public auction at a consideration of RMB1,420,000,000 A R #1,420,000,000 7t ( #HE R4
(approximately HK$1,605,000,000) from Tianjin Hi-Tech Holding, 1,605,000,000% 7T, ) M B L =75 K
an independent third party. The purchase was by way of EERERKEE TR EIEE
acquisition of the entire equity interests of Tianjin Hi-Tech New BERAE WEABAXREESR
Star Property. This transaction had been accounted as a purchase MERMESIREZFNET -
of assets and liabilities. IRRGERBABERBEALRK -
HK$'000
FHEIT
Net assets acquired: B NEESE :
Prepaid lease payments AN E A 1,280,999
Assets classified as held for sale PERAGEEELEZEE 323,559
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERE® 19
Total consideration satisfied by cash wRE - ARSI 1,604,577
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WIBEE 2R ®m L F8E
Cash consideration paid ERNRENRE (1,604,577)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRITHEFRRS 19

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BEAMTB AR ZHR & MRS

of the acquisition of subsidiaries SEYRLFE

(1,604,558)
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For the year ended 31 March 2010 # £ —~ % —FA4F = H =+ —H [L4F
(i) Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin (i) RFERFR

REE-_ZEZThF=A=+—8H
LtFE AEEFBAENER
B A K 334,160,000 7T (18 % 1 49
377,601,000/ 7T ) MBI F =7 K
EEEEHERBEE TYWEREE

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group acquired
certain properties and its related assets and liabilities, through
public auction from Tianjin Hi-Tech Property, an independent third
party in respect of the acquisition of entire interest in Tianjin Hi-
Tech Goldin and the shareholder’s loan for a total consideration of

RMB334, 160,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$377,601,000). MAERAR - WHBAR {:ii 5
This transaction had been accounted as a purchase of assets and a%'% RZ iﬁgﬂﬂg&HX%E’?‘ZE
liabilities. NET - WRRXHERBABER
BEAK-
HK$'000
FH&T
Net assets acquired: FrEE NBEFME
Prepaid lease payments FENEERIE 366,301
Other receivables H b e U 3R IR 11,268
Bank balances and cash WITHEFRE® 32
Total consideration BRE 377,601
Satisfied by: YRR
Cash consideration BeRE 180,800
Deferred consideration included in trade and BN
other payables H fth f& 7 508 2 R IE R (B 196,801
377,601
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEA 2R RLFE
Cash consideration paid ENEeRE (180,800)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRITEFRRS 32

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BEAMB AT R4 RIRE
of the acquisition of subsidiaries LEYRHFE (180,768)
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(i) Huading (iif) ==

RBEE-_ZTZTAF=A=+—H
EFE AEBEBMEURE
A R #200,000,000 7T ( 48 % R 4
226,000,00078 7T ) MBI E = FH K

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group acquired
certain properties and its related assets and liabilities,
through public auction from Tianjin Hi-Tech Development, an
independent third party in respect of the acquisition of 51.28%

interest in Huading for a consideration of RMB200,000,000 RERBRMBET WX KA
(equivalent to approximately HK$226,000,000). The Group was MEEKAE - WEABAZR
committed through a forward contract to acquire the remaining Z5128%H 1 2 77 AEAT 0 AR
equity interest of 48.72% in Huading in a consideration of 338 ] SR B KRG AR R
RMB190,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$214,700,000) ARERRRBERERN-FF

NEFT AN ZEREBEZAR
B A E #190,000,000 7T (#8749
214,700,000 7T ) # — W =R

in accordance with a framework agreement which had been
entered into between the Group and Tianjin Hi-Tech Development
in December 2008. This transaction had been accounted as

a purchase of assets and liabilities. At 31 March 2010, the ﬁf—F 2\48'72%%1% CHRRHE
acquisition of the remaining equity interest of 48.72% in Huading BBARERABAR - N=%—

TEZA=+—HB WEESKT
48.72% IR AR TERK ©

has not yet been completed.

HK$'000
T T
Net assets acquired: FrI AEBEFE
Prepaid lease payments FERNEERE 406,954
Other receivables e 184,528
Bank balances and cash WITHEFRE S S
Other payables H Ath &~ 518 (147,059)
Taxation payable FEB A (3,728)
440,700
Minority interests DB R BT (214,700)
Total consideration B E 226,000
Satisfied by: TREAR
Cash consideration HERE 226,000
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE RS R L T
Cash consideration paid BENEeNRE (226,000)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRITEFTREAS 5

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect HEAMB AR ZRE K&
of the acquisition of subsidiaries ReFEYRLFE (225,995)



Details of the aggregate net assets acquired in respect of the acquisition
of the above subsidiaries are summaries below:
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FhU B bl B & B W B ) B B R (B

REEBHANT

Fair value
AFE
HK$'000
F&T
Net assets acquired: FIEB A NEESHE :
Prepaid lease payments T AERE 2,054,254
Assets classified as held for sale PHEAREELECEE 323,559
Other receivables H b pE U SR IR 195,796
Bank balances and cash RTT mf&fii 56
Other payables H M FE < kI8 (147,059)
Taxation payable FESTIR (3,728)
2,422,878
Minority interests DB R R (214,700)
Total consideration B E 2,208,178
Satisfied by: SN
Cash consideration HeRE 2,011,377
Deferred consideration included in trade and FFARNERR R
other payables HE b ENFRIE 2 ELERE 196,801
2,208,178
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WEEA 2R R IFE :
Cash consideration paid ENRENRE (2,011,377)
Bank balances and cash acquired BAZRITEFTRES 56

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of BAZEWBRARZ
the acquisition of subsidiaries ReRAZEYRLFE (2,011,321)
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REBE_ZETNF=ZA=+—HILEFE -
AEFBEHEEMNE QR KL FEEB
HEBEEMIHABERBEERK - #BER

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group discontinued its
development and sales of digital consumer products operation at the
time of disposal of its subsidiaries. The details have been disclosed in

Note 14. M EE144% 58 -
Net assets disposed of: HEZEEFTHE
2010 2009
—E-FF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx T
Property, plant and equipment W - BE &R E — 128,158
Prepaid lease payments EREERIE = 2,804
Inventories FE — 198,788
Intangible asset BmEEE = 162,694
Pledged bank deposits BEIFRITIER = 415,490
Bank balances and cash wITETFRES = 740,399
Trade and other receivables JIE W R 5% K% HL th B U SRR = 428,432
Amount due to immediate T BB R A I8
holding company — (20,339)
Trade and other payables JE AT AR 3 B EL i JE A< RRIE = (194,951)
Other derivative financial instrument EmirEemI A — (861)
Bank loans RITHE K = (1,033,868)
Taxation payable FE BB IE — (66,019)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEHIBEAE — (55,683)
— 705,044
Consideration RE — 993,925
— 288,881
Assignment of debts EREEE = (228,741)
Release of translation reserve LERERREREE
upon disposals — 267,403
Contribution from equity participants (note) A% Zx 2 B2 A f 2% (P 51) = (5,352)
Gains on disposals of subsidiaries HER B Rz W — 322,191
Satisfied by: YA
Cash RE — 830,722
Amount due from a related company JE W — A B8 & A R RUE — 163,203
— 993,925
Net cash inflow arising on disposals: HEEEZRERAFEE
Cash consideration HeERE — 830,722
Bank balances and cash disposed of FrEE 2 iRTEFRES — (740,399)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEZEWB AT ZIRS
respect of the disposals of subsidiaries EREEBMRENFE — 90,323

Wiat - ZEEEEXIETHA NG —F
EFE KRR R 5% #75352,000
BT ZEIE -

Note: The amount represented the transfer of certain liabilities
amounting to approximately HK$5,352,000 to a Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company at HK$1.
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At 31 March 2010, bank deposits of HK$6,726,000 (2009:
HK$1,000,000) were pledged by the Group to the banks in order to
secure general banking facilities granted by the banks to the Group.

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

MW-ZE-—ZTE=A=+—0 A&£HRA
IRITHE IR R 1T 17 516,726,000 L (- EE
JUE £ 1,000,000 7T) - MBS IRITE T
AEEZ —RRTRE -

RARAE R ET &R

Contributions to mandatory provident fund
scheme (“MPF Scheme")
Contributions to PRC state-managed

2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTHET FiBT

N E A

pension schemes

Amount charged to consolidated statement {47 & 2 [ W 25 3R & 15

(MaEErE]) #x 514 360
R B RE ERA S B

1,687 830
{ HE

2,201 1,190

of comprehensive income

The Group ceased to operate the defined contribution scheme which is
registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of independent trustee. The Group now only
participates in the MPF Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong which
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rules of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the Scheme at rate specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the Scheme. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of pension schemes operated by the Chinese local
government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of the relevant cost of the basic payroll of these employees
to the pension schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
specified contribution.

AREE T BEFRBEBE RN EGRD
Atz RERKGE - ZAtBcEER
KEBZEESHREE  WAESER
RARXABIUREAETRE - AKER
BEZ2ERMETAREMKR Z2RER
A8l REEFETRREBFERES
RGN B AR EE REM
BRESHBZEERAKREZEED H
BE  YAEEHARFERIHBBIL
BEAEE - REBRBESE KA &
TRHEEEETHARBBERANEEZ
xR ZAEAHK  AEEERAEES
Atz E—RERRBEZAEELRE
Z AR o BB O OR W R AT A {E
HHRRRFEE RN Z 5 -

ARARRPEZHBAR A ERE
ERPEMTBNEFEZEKREEIZ
RE - ZEMBRARAAKRZEEEZ
EREAFHFERNAZEX-—BOLAZE
KREeFEHK ERBRMNZER - &K
BAEBERKENGE 2E-—BEEREL
BEZHRK -
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The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for

future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases EHE AERBAINGEEEZX
which fall due as follows: HHEIEAT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within one year —F R 1,660 500
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_EZEFRF(BEEMFBELEAN) 82 179
1,742 679
Leases are negotiated for a term ranged from 1 to 4 years. ERscHEFHNT—ENE o
The Company had no significant operating lease commitments at the RATRBERARL B ERLE
end of the reporting period. B -
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Expenditures contracted for but not BETRERRGAE M B ®EA
provided in the consolidated financial EHBE A -
statements in respect of:
Development expenditure of investment WEYMENBREPEEDEZ
properties and properties under EREX
development for sale 632,647 872,173
Construction of hotel properties and BEBEMERERERTIER
polo club and theme park (note) i) 891,978 180,800
Construction of educational facilities BERE R 86,151 85,696
1,610,776 1,138,669

REBEREBEA

RBEHRR AKERBEIATHE 2K
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The Company had no significant capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period.

Note:

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement with X Z#ETEEZEREFEZEE Administrative
Committee of Tianjin Hi-Tech Industry Park in relation to the
construction and operation of the polo club and theme park and the
Group was committed to construct a polo club and theme park with
minimum investment of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$180,800,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Group entered into an
agreement with X E& &= #5172 2 F# 2 B+ &R EEER B
Tianjin Binhai Hi-Tech Industry Development Area of Land Resources
and Housing Management Bureau in respect of the acquisition of land
use rights held for hotel operation. In accordance with the agreement,
the Group is committed to construct hotel properties with minimum
investment of RMB550,000,000 (equivalent to HK$624,800,000). As at
31 March 2010, the amount paid and payable for the construction of
the hotel properties was RMB227,309,000 (equivalent to
HK$258,223,000), which has been included in the Group’s construction
in progress under property, plant and equipment.

At 31 March 2010, the capital commitments on the expenditures
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
in respect of construction of hotel properties and polo club and theme
park amounting to HK$891,978,000 is based on total contract sum of
all relevant contracts in relation to the construction of hotel properties
and polo club and theme park less the expenditures already incurred
and provided in the consolidated financial statements.

AR AV E BRI AT ] R A A
¥ o
ez -
FEBARBE_FFNF=A=+—H

ILFRRXEF M EREEEEZ R
Q?Jﬁ@gLﬁ§§$ﬁAﬁI%ﬂ
Bz MAEBERELTLRAR
%?7&200&000jf(/ﬁ?§§ﬁ§78a80Q000}§
L) BENEEZFREREELE -

REF—_E-—FF=ZH=+—HIFFEF -
KREE G W IEFFH ARG EEBZ 1
1 JH FE [Ty £ K B G 5 R E R
B+ ERHNEEEEZEE V5 - IR
BZ s REBARZUTLRARE
550,000,000 7T (16 & 1624, 800 000 o)
REUZBEBEYRE R-ZF—FF=
A=+—H" Eﬁ&%ﬁ@é@ﬁ%%
Z 25 AN R 227309000 T (1 ZE R
258223000, T ) * HHH E & A XK EEH
Y% BERREETZHEZETIE -

R-DE—FFZA=+—H FEEE
EYERGE SR FENEEFA AR
REEHBFEREZAIEHBEEZHS 2 E
TR HE 5891,978000% T » T3 IR IEFF A
ERZEOEYERSE SR EENE
ZW%D7Z@Q%§ﬁﬁ£EF§1
REB B FEREZAEL B EZ S E
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At 31 March 2010, the Company provided a limited guarantee of
HK$2,000,000 (2009: Nil) to a bank in respect of credit facilities granted
to a subsidiary. The aggregate amount of such credit facilities utilised by
the subsidiary at 31 March 2010 is approximately HK$160,000 (2009:
Nil).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in relation to
the above mentioned guarantee issued by the Company to the bank in
respect of credit facility utilised by the subsidiary as its fair value at initial
recognition is considered to be insignificant and the Directors consider
that the possibility of the default is remote. Accordingly, no value has
been recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position.

MW-ZE—TE=FA=+—8 A2
BEF—HHMBRARZEEREREMmMRA
— MR 1T EE — 182,000,000 T (Z 2 Z
NF E)2ERER - RZE—ZF=
B=+—R ZMBARCBHAZE@EE
ERE A% #160,0008 T (ZET A F
) o

ARAY EEREMNER LAARAH
MBARMERZEEREMRKRTH
HZRERZEZRA  BRAEAFER
BERAERANERAREMEEERREY
ZATBEMEAR /N o AUt - WERARE Z
BB IR IR R N IERARRE A -
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During the year ended 31 March 2010, the interest expenses on
Convertible Bonds that were paid to Goldin Group (Investment) Limited
and Mr. Pan amounted to approximately HK$99,421,000 (2009:
HK$99,557,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company had entered into
certain sale and purchase agreements in respect of disposal of the entire
interest of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pan, a Director and
controlling shareholder of the Company has beneficial interests in the
Grace Dragon and Matsunichi Global, the purchasers. The details are
disclosed in Note 14.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors and other members of key management
during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits 52 HA1E A
Post-employment benefits RIS 18 12 A

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

IR EZE R AR AR

REBEE-_T—ZF=ZA=Z+—HLHF
E EXNTFTeREE(ERE)EBERA
ARELEEZABRRESFNNERIZIOA
99,421,000/ 7T ( = Z Z AL F : 99,557,000
W) ©

REE-_ZTETAF=ZA=Z+—HILF
E- ARFEHLEEARRRAETHEA
ARSI VUETEERZ - AQ
REESREBRBREFLERBEANRER
Matsunichi Global# 5 Bz a o 5FI1EF
FE149KEE

TEEBEAE ZHMH

EEREMEIRERABREAZHME
LI

2010 2009
—g-2% —=Eng
HK$"000 HK$’'000
FB T
32,328 27,551

34 18

32,362 27,569

EEZMEREMNALZRBERTS
Y HFMEZEeEE -
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Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2010

and 31 March 2009 are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration/

Name of subsidiary operation
g3 Ve

MEIREE EEE

Goldin Properties Group Hong Kong

Limited BE
EEMERERRAA

Gold Novel Limited B.V.I./Hong Kong

ERERAA EEERES/
0
Port Rich Limited Hong Kong
BRERRAA B
Proman International Hong Kong
Limited BE
REBRERRA
GuangDong Goldin PRC*
Properties Ltd.
BEREHREHERRAA g
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star PRC*
Investment Company
Limited
REBFRFMEREERRA HE*
Tianjin Hi-Tech Sun PRC*
Investment Company
Limited
REBRGAREFRAA HHEx
Tianjin Hi-Tech New Star PRC*
Property Development
Company Limited
REBRMERME e
HEARQA
Tianjin Hi-Tech Goldin PRC*

Investment Company
Limited
REBRRBREBRAR FE*

Paid up issued/
registered
ordinary share
capital

HEE

BT /HEM
EERAE

HK$1
18T

Us$1
1%7T

HK$1

18T

HK$1

18T
US$49,950,000
49,950,000% 7T
RMB10,000,000
AR
10,000,0007T
RMB10,000,000
AR
10,000,0007C
RMB439,547,152
AR
439,547,152 7T
RMB10,000,000

ARE
10,000,0007T

ARRIZEEMB R
A=t BR=ZFFAF=A=1—

ZEEMT :

Proportion of equity interests held by the Company

ARARFERET D
2010 2009
—E-ZBF —TThF

Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
H#E 4 B LS
100% — 100% —
100% — 100% —
— 100% — 100%
— 100% — 100%
— 100% — 100%
— 100% — 100%
— 100% — 100%
— 100% — 100%
— 100% — 100%

AR-_ZTE—ZTF

m |

Principal activities

ETERER

Provision of administrative
services

REUITHRE

Investment holding

RE R

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

REZBK

Property development and
investment

MEZRRRE

Property development and
investment

MEBRIKE

Property development

and investment

MEZRRRE

Property investment

MERE
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Place of Paid up issued/
incorporation/ registered
registration/ ordinary share
Name of subsidiary operation capital Proportion of equity interests held by the Company  Principal activities
BEE
R/ & B /ER
MEDR SR EEWE EERAE ARRfsRET D TEXEH
2010 2009
—2-BF —ETNF
Directly Indirectly Directly Indirectly
HE 3 B k3
Tianjin Huading Real Estate PRC* RMB100,000,000 — 51.28% — 51.28%  Property development
Company Limited
REEQEEBRAF R AR MERE
100,000,0007T
Tianjin Goldin International PRC* US$18,810,000 100% - = —  Property investment and
Club Company Limited polo club operation
Rz REIR AL g 18,810,000 7T MEREREHGER
BRADA
Zhi Chang Limited B.V.I./Hong Kong Us$1 100% — — —  Investment holding
HEBRAF RERLHE/ (EST RAER
Fonde Hotels Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% — — Investment holding
RERXBEREER i VBT REZR
BRAR
Tianjin Goldin Technology PRC* US$100,000 100% — — —  Hotel operation
Company Limited
REBBEHEERRA hE 100,000% 7T EE#
*  These companies were established in the PRC in the form of * BRERAUINEEEL R ES

wholly-owned foreign enterprise.

EJK 17 -

(@  None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 31
March 2010 or at any time during the year.

(b)  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

(b)

K=Z-FF=A=t—ARFA
FERBR - B A I 1R
BES -

WARAREFEZER » ERIBER
RAZMBRAIRTIEXEAREHE
AERXEHAEARBEERE
LEZRF - EFERB R HE AN
BRAIzHBESREEANTE



GOLDIN PROPERTIES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial Summary

S W BE 22

RESULTS

Turnover

Profit before taxation
Taxation (charge) credit

Profit for the year

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

ES

EERE

Bk A5 A i A
HIE (%) HR
FE A

BEERRE

2010
—g-%f
HK’'000
FiEx

1,373,801
(444,194)

929,607

2010
—E-%%F
HK’'000
FHT

9,630,116
(3,832,520)

5,797,596

Year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—HLEE

2009
—EENF
HK'000
T T

666,260
64,033

730,293

2009
—EENF
HK’000
T T

7,626,542
(2,802,912)

4,823,630

2008
—EZENF
HK'000
FH&IT

4,297,788

1,157,962
(471,312)

686,650

At 31 March
R=A=+-—H

2008
—ZETNF
HK’000
T T

8,660,280
(4,570,878)

4,089,402

2007
—ETF
HK'000
T T

3,070,579

212,942
(10,765)

202,177

2007
—ETLHF
HK’000
FHET

3,246,415
(1,450,673)

1,795,742

2006
ZETRF
HK’'000
T T

2,313,706

219,706
(4,654)

215,052

2006
“RTAR
HK'000
T

2,480,723
(1,135,276)

1,345,447



'(? Goldin Properties Holdings Limited
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Stock Code B3 1X5%: 00283

22nd Floor, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central, Hong Kong
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www.goldinppt.com
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